malkamk
Consolidated Income Statement

BHE_TZTF+-A=1+—HLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009

B e FTHET FAT

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

F 2N Interest income 6 1,141,383 1,338,301
B Interest expense 7 (170,802) (300,594)
U DN Net interest income 970,581 1,037,707
HABYA Other income 8 587,799 231,588
ST DN Operating income 1,558,380 1,269,295
T Operating expenses 9 (171,425) (157,836)
RETRERTBVAS &5 A Operating profit before impairment 1,386,955 1,111,459
BB E R Write-back of loan impairment allowances 12 16,663 36,837
wEin Operating profit 1,403,618 1,148,296
FEAE EEE S B ERE T Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,259 1,922
B A A Profit before taxation 1,405,877 1,150,218
I8 Taxation 13(a) (172,015) (144,186)
AREETRF] Profit for the year 1,233,862 1,006,032

FE{G#F /(B518) : Profit/(loss) attributable to:

RAERRER Equity holders of the Company 1,233,532 1,006,469
V2 PRI AR R Non-controlling interest 330 (437)
1,233,862 1,006,032

Bk B Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000

F102E 181 BFiE AR E M HRERN— D °

Statements.
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SETHEHWER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-T-TF A=+ BLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
B 5 FHET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEZ R Profit for the year 1,233,862 1,006,032
Hith 2wz : Other comprehensive income:
A HHERS Available-for-sale securities:
- RERWEFRE - unrealised net gains 31 143,631 227,272
- HERATEES — fair value changes transferred to income
BT statement on disposal 31 (40,554) (3,522)
- BB — tax effect 31 (17,307) (37,311)
- RERWEFE — - unrealised net gains —
HEESIEE jointly controlled entity 31 163 -
— H5E — amortisation 31 1,809 2,381
e TME R Cash flow hedges:
- ERGCRERERRER — net gains arising from hedges recognised
e AR directly in equity 31 26,340 25,126
- BARGmROAFEE — fair value changes transferred to
income statement 31 (79) =
- Fim — tax effect 31 (4,333) (4,145)
PRGN E TSI E A Y Exchange differences on translation of
M ZERR foreign operations
- WEBAR — subsidiary 4,309 157
- HRENEHIEE — jointly controlled entity 31 13,108 1,279
RNEFEEMEERE - Other comprehensive income for the year,
2R IR net of tax 127,087 211,237
FEEEEMREE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,360,949 1,217,269
FEAE 2 E 2485 Total comprehensive income attributable to:
ViN/NE] )i 351 Equity holders of the Company 1,360,188 1,217,707
SR I HIRENR R Non-controlling interest 761 (438)
1,360,949 1,217,269
F102 = 181 EFi#E M E B4R A SRR —2H ° The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R_E—ZTF+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2010
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2010 2009
fii Fi# Tt
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
&E ASSETS
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 17 5,902,649 4,067,798
FEUSF B K PE 5k Interest and remittance receivables 18 657,150 710,530
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,396,621 1,317,375
B BEF5E Loan portfolio, net 20 35,258,937 43,788,716
BEEE Investment securities:
- AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,403,966 3,613,064
- BEZREIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,033,133 5,817,998
HEZEGIEEKRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 130,720 115,190
BEEEE Fixed assets 24 17,252 21,257
TENRIE « Re RHMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 27,659 32,595
BIRBREE Reinsurance assets 27 204,891 266,101
BAESE Total assets 55,032,978 59,750,624
=1 LIABILITIES
FERTFIE Interest payable 493,553 445,787
FEISERTE - BRI R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
HEMaE liabilities 26 4,291,137 4274177
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 19 44,372 158,246
FERFRIR Tax payable 13(b) 133,560 138,329
EEFIIEE & Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 37,167 15,209
R A& Insurance liabilities 27 1,773,665 1,462,318
BEITERES Debt securities issued 28 39,127,735 44,495,073
BEBITIZBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 29 1,529,749 2,020,394
EfEEE Total liabilities 47,430,938 53,009,533
R EQUITY
e FEa AL Capital and reserves attributable to the
AR Rk (i equity holders:
A& ZN Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
{RER A Retained profits 4,561,624 3,925,694
BB E Contingency reserve 31 437,435 189,833
N {EFE Fair value reserve 31 255,191 167,449
i Hedging reserve 31 (23,757) (45,685)
bE 53 1 Translation reserve 31 9,866 (7,120)
FORAR B Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000
7,590,359 6,730,171
RITHIER R A Non-controlling interest in equity 11,681 10,920
i8R Total equity 7,602,040 6,741,091
BN REEEE Total equity and liabilities 55,032,978 59,750,624

BEREON-Z & A+ BhERE#ETT - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2011.

PR NormanT. L. Chan

B E% Pang Sing Tong, Peter

BIEE Deputy Chairman #77EE  Executive Director
F102E 181 BEFfE M AR BRI —ED ° The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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B 75 AR O 3R

Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—ZTF+=-A=+—H
as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
B 5 FHET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 17 5,769,509 3,924,752
FEULF B R ERK Interest and remittance receivables 18 645,232 698,809
PTESMITE Derivative financial instruments 19 1,372,522 1,273,102
BREFEE Loan portfolio, net 20 31,392,398 40,817,163
BHIE Investment securities:
- A E — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,403,966 3,613,064
- FEZEEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,033,133 5,817,998
HEBARIEE Investment in subsidiaries 22 3,205,632 1,733,580
HEIEFIEEKRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 120,554 120,554
EE&E Fixed assets 24 15,980 19,000
AR - ke REMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 29,220 36,681
BiRmEE Reinsurance assets 27 204,891 266,101
BEHEE Total assets 54,193,037 = 58,320,804
BiE LIABILITIES
FERTFE Interest payable 491,231 442,217
FERTERIE - RS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
EmaE liabilities 26 4,792,266 4,910,949
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments 19 44,372 158,246
FETFRIE Tax payable 13(b) 134,532 131,850
BERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 37,167 15,213
RBREE Insurance liabilities 27 1,773,665 1,462,318
BEBITERES Debt securities issued 28 39,405,886 44,495,073
=1t Total liabilities 46,679,119 51,615,866
s EQUITY
Emts B AEL Capital and reserves attributable to the
AR R i equity holders:
&N Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
IRE i Retained profits 4,495,212 3,893,341
[\ R f e Contingency reserve 31 437,435 189,833
N ERE Fair value reserve 31 255,028 167,449
o Hedging reserve 31 (23,757) (45,685)
R AR 2, Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000
Wi Total equity 7,513,918 6,704,938
R EEEE Total equity and liabilities 54,193,037 = 58,320,804

EEREN TN A+ BhERERETIT - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2011.

&% NormanT.L.Chan %% Pang Sing Tong, Peter

I=/E Deputy Chairman #7TEF  Executive Director

F102 = 181 B ML AR SRR MN—2H ° The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

EBRBEZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZZFT-_A=1T—HIFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

99

FRTBREES
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R
TERRR
R R &R Hithf# e Non-
Share Retained Other  controlling G
capital Profits * reserves interest Total
WE TR 7 572 572 87
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NR-BFAE—RA—BH%ER Balance as at 1 January 2009 2,000,000 3,735,513 26,951 - 5,762,464
zl&ir;;ﬁfru/ (E8) Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,006,469 - (437) 1,006,032
HEEBTHFOAFE YR Net fair value gains of available-
@%‘E B HIBRTIE for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 188,820 - 188,820
W MENPR S E)FE - Net change in cash flow hedges,
B BRELIE net of tax 31 - - 20,981 = 20,981
HRE R INEFERT E A RIFE X, Exchange differences on
=8 translation of foreign operations
= W% — subsidiary 31 - - 158 (1) 157
%‘JE B — jointly controlled entity 31 - = 1,279 = 1,279
Zliifiﬁu%z L) Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,006,469 211,238 (438) 1,217,269
RIEHIRER R EE Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - 11,358 11,358
AR &AM Transfer of 50% of net risk
BB R B FEEH) 50% premium earned from retained
Bl profits to contingency reserve 31 - (76,313) 76,313 - -
[ = R s A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 = 10,025 (10,025) = =
BENZEENFRE Dividend paid related to 2008 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
R=—ZFTh&E+=-H=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2009
“es 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091
NEF K Profit for the year - 1233532 - 330 1,233,862
AR EESN AT ERE Net fair value gains of available-
FEE - BHRTRIE for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 87,742 - 87,742
I MENT R S E)FEE - Net change in cash flow hedges,
EBRFIA net of tax 31 = = 21,928 = 21,928
HE G INERS I EE RO IE 5, Exchange differences on
=5 translation of foreign operations
- BERA — subsidiary 31 - - 33878 431 4,309
- HREEGEEE — jointly controlled entity 31 - - 13,108 - 13,108
AEE2EBEREE Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,233,532 126,656 761 1,360,949
AR EANBEA R WM Transfer of 50% of net risk
[EBR IR 2 FFEH) 50% premium earned from retained
B profits to contingency reserve 31 - (260,282) 260,282 - -
ROl R R R R R A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 12,680 (12,680) - -
BN =EENEFRE Dividend paid related to 2009 - (500,000) - - (500,000)
M_¥—¥$+_H =+—H Balance as at 31 December 2010
e 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040
*FRIE-TE+-A=+—8  ERFEZEMNBE  * Asat 31 December 2010, HK$350 million (2009: HK$500 million) was earmarked as

#350,000,000/ T (Z T =

T ERBER RIS, -

2102 £ 181 EPT#HIM L RER A MBS RRE — 5D -

JU4F : 500,000,0007%

proposed final dividend from retained profits.

The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-T-TF A=+ BLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
LiEss FET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
CEXBRARERLSRE Cash flows from operating activities
Fdyinkl Operating profit 1,403,618 1,148,296
AT ZIAELAAE Adjustment for:
FLEUA Interest income (1,151,373)  (1,334,981)
AEXH Interest expense 116,949 254,642
AR EMA Dividend income (43,595) (42,224)
e Depreciation 12,928 10,890
BB ITERE SRR Amortisation of discount on debt securities issued 53,853 45,952
ERURE R Write-back of loan impairment allowances (16,663) (36,837)
HBRRE EREMIEMEZE  Loan portfolio written off net of recoveries 4,760 634
TR(EHT IR Bl Unwind of discount on impairment (79) (322
A ERESEETE 2T H Amortisation of unrealised loss on available-for-
8 75 R 0 AR 3R e TR O sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 1,809 2,381
BHILERE/(Fag) #H Amortisation of premium/(discount) on investment
securities 8,181 (5,701)
S A B B A e F R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (64,752) (5,277)
CRTEAFEE Change in fair value of financial instruments 4,832 35,534
BEReRAARESREE Change in translation of financial assets under cash
= flow hedge 26,340 25,126
BAMERRIB L REFH Fair value changes of cash flow hedge transferred
NEEZE) to income statement (79) -
=SS Interest received 1,123,624 1,361,663
BERFE Interest paid (69,183) (278,820)
RetiEE B ERBEZEHH Cash flows from operating activities before changes
KEXEBAERERE in operating assets and liabilities 1,411,170 1,180,956
R=1E A 1% E| B e E HRF R (Increase)/decrease in time deposits with more than
(#n)/ md three months’ maturity (1,117,896) 88,971
JE U BE FOR Decrease in remittance receivables 81,129 597,273
TEMFUE - ke REMEERS  Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other assets 3,438 630
BxEERLD Decrease in loan portfolio 8,541,761 7,007,921
FETERIA - R A REA Increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and
BEEM other liabilities 16,960 90,484
R B EFEEILMN Increase in insurance liabilities, net 372,557 635,919
HNEBRE =58 Exchange differences (6,535) (2,848)
KEFTIRIRE Cash generated from operation 9,302,584 9,599,306
B BEFIESH Hong Kong profits tax paid (176,466) (51,066)
KA ETEFTSIR 58 Net cash generated from operating activities 9,126,118 9,548,240

EBRBEZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



2010 2009
B E FHET FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REFIABESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEEEAE Purchase of fixed assets 24 (8,866) (17,845)
BB S5 Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (4,263,000)  (3,134,672)
HEERAREHE Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (4,341,842)  (2,923,038)
HE BRI A EFS Proceeds from sale or redemption of
FT{S IR available-for-sale securities 4,644,210 1,813,456
FERIRFE 22 HE S P15 5K IE Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
securities 21(b) 2,130,621 2,731,226
UL R I B BE FOIR R 2 Decrease in amount due from a jointly controlled
entity - 1,543
BUATMEEEFEHFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale securities 45,093 39,554
S B EBATAIR®F5E Net cash used in investing activities (1,793,784)  (1,489,776)
RIS RIRRNIFE Net cash inflows before financing 7,332,334 8,058,464
ﬂé‘“&iﬁijﬁﬁ?&iﬂﬁ; iR Cash flows from financing activities
SNEE S BRFTSHIE Proceeds from advance from Exchange Fund - 57,000,000
EEINEES BN Repayment of advance from Exchange Fund - (65,000,000)
BITEBBHIERIE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 8,193,535 22,060,740
HBE 2 EITERE Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (13,838,443)  (19,645,595)
BEITIRIBEREN Repayment of mortgage-backed securities issued 29 (470,471)  (1,171,456)
SRIEHIRENR R EE Capital injection by non-controlling interest - 11,358
EfRE A Dividend paid 16 (500,000) (250,000)
BMEEBMAR 25 Net cash used in financing activities (6,615,379)  (6,994,953)
HE&RERIRLEREINFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 716,955 1,063,511
FEMNHERERRLIEH Beginning cash and cash equivalents 3,828,119 2,764,608
FR[EREFRFELER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 4,545,074 3,828,119
F102E 181 BATHH B E B RERN—E D The notes on pages 102 to 181 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. RREE

ERRIBESER AR ([AAF)]) REHB AR
(G [AEE ) MRS UBHRRDERAD S
tEAe ([FEe:tiAe ) BHENE ST BR
SR ([ BB RS2 (BIEMAEAMNE
RIEBISHRELER ([HBPEREED]) - F
Best LR (B8 £L]) ki) - &84
RO R AEREBQAFHEHINRERE -

AiRa M BHRRIZELKANEFRE - LEHA
HHERFRE UAFEIIENEREENS
BEAB(BETESRTE) WBE[AELRE -

BAITERALESN - AR FAR A R TSR T
WERSA BRI EDERAE2ROME F
EFERMER—2 -

RET A BB B I EER NP IR AR
ETEAEHER  MEEERBASE SR
REFIRABITIEH A E - BERS HIE BB
MWES - ARR LA LRV T RRBEEZN
SRS EM T4 BEE -

2. EEERTHR
21 RMEEHBEEED
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28 BT RER
() THIER - BT RRBR-E 26
A SRR EIER

o BEGAEIERIF 279 (KIEFT) 47
BRBIPBIRE - 2RIEHIE
PE - MEERZ KA BELHE
HiBs - BIEE SRR R 2
BRI FTA X 5 & & A HE 2
2751 o ZAERITR IR K SRR b
ZEFRTEET N o HFEZRAIZER
THEEEATFEEHNE  MiBs
RIBERRP R © BEALAERTH
BEIER] - HAKE W BRRL

N
REFE o

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs" is a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment
securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or after
1 January 2010

(i) The following standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2010, which are relevant to the Group:

e HKAS 27 (revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements requires the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result
in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies
the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest
in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or 10ss
is recognised in profit or loss. The adoption of the revised
standard has no effect on the financial statements of the
Group.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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HKAS 39 (amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting clarifies
that gains or losses should be reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the period in which the hedged forecast cash flow
affects profit or l0ss. There is no material impact to the financial
statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HKAS 39 (@amendment) Treating Loan Prepayment Penalties
as closely related derivatives clarifies that loan prepayment
penalties are only treated as closely related embedded
derivatives, if the penalties are payments that compensate
the lender for loss of interest by reducing the economic 10sS
from reinvestment risk. A specific formula is given to calculate
the lost interest. There is no material impact to the financial
statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HK(FRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative
should be separated from a host contract when the entity
reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the ‘fair value through
profit or loss’ category. This assessment is to be made based
on circumstances that existed on the later of the date the
entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any
contract amendments that significantly change the cash flows
of the contract. If the entity is unable to make this assessment,
the hybrid instrument must remain classified as at fair value
through profit or loss in its entirety. There is no material impact
to the financial statements of the Group as a result of this
amendment.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations

effective in 2010, are not currently relevant to the Group (although

they may affect the accounting for future transactions):

HKFRS 2 (amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions.

HKFRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations, and consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 28 Investments in Associates, and HKAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures.

HKFRS 5 (@amendment) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

ZZ—ZFFH, ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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104 =w&piE®mEME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e HKAS 1 (@amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements.

e HKAS 17 (amendment) Leases.

o HKAS 38 (amendment) Intangible Assets.

e HKAS 39 (amendment) Eligible Hedged Items.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operations.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Oowners.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers.

e HK-Int5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause.

e Improvements to HKFRS containing numerous amendments

e
ﬂ%\;’é TR AERARIEEYE to HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but
BRENZIEER] necessary.

b EEMEMAERNER > BT R (b) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet

7E effective
() ATERMEE=ZS—ZTF—A—H (i) The following new standard and amendments relevant to the
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AREERR - MASED L HIZAER
W ERERI M AERT ©

o BAVBRELAEORLRMIA

R-ZETNF+—HRfM - BIKE

BEEERIE I RATHEES A
NEtEmEED - TE2RENT ¢

EREEADBERMETERR
—BRERKRAFEFENERE
B »—EaERIEIERAE
NEREE o sTERFITINIIAE
RERZ AR ERESRM T AN
BEAAEZIANANRERE
R mEETE °

EBESBRTAREBEBTA - AT
SIS 5 A A X A A AR

EHHERE  MEENALNRE
MEERRAES RIS 5K (ANE
BB TEAEREE]D BERT -
Z e T AR Ty SRR AR
£ - A EMEB T ANGESR
NFEFF AR ©

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

Group have been issued but not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2010 and have not been early adopted:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued in November
2009 and replaces those parts of HKAS 39 relating to the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Key
features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at
amortised cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
only if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the
entity's business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset's contractual cash flows
represent only payments of principal and interest (that is, it
has only ‘basic loan features’). All other debt instruments are
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at
fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will
be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair
value gains and losses through other comprehensive income
rather than profit or loss. There is no recycling of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be
presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent return
on investment.

In November 2010, the requirements related to the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and derecognition
of financial instruments were added to HKFRS 9. All the
requirements in HKAS 39 for the accounting and presentation
for financial liabilities and for derecognition of financial
instruments were carried forward unchanged to HKFRS 9,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option.

For the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option, the amount of change in the
fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented separately in other comprehensive income,
unless presentation of the fair value change attributable
to the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss where an entity shall recognise all fair value movements
in the profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the
amounts in the other comprehensive income to profit or loss,
but accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

Financial liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including financial guarantees and loan
commitments measured at fair value through profit or loss,
will continue to have all fair value movement recognised in
the profit or loss.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,
earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the whole standard
including other phases of HKFRS 9 on the Group and the timing
of its adoption by the Group.
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e Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (2010) were issued in May 2010 by HKICPA. All
improvements are effective in the financial year of 2011. No
material changes to accounting policies are expected as a
result of these amendments.

(i) The following amendments and interpretations, which are not
effective in 2010 are not expected to be relevant to the Group:

e HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters.

e HKAS 12 (amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets.

e HKAS 32 (amendment) Classification of Rights Issues.

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 (amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement.

(c) Early adoption of standard

The Group has early-adopted HKAS 24 (revised) Related Party
Disclosures in 2010, which was issued in November 2009. It
supersedes HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued in 2003. The
revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related
party. It also provides a partial exemption from the disclosure
requirements for government-related entities to disclose details of
all transactions with the government and other government-related
entities. The Group has not applied the exemption from the disclosure
requirements for the government-related entities.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of these interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities. They are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, separately from
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the net profit
for the year between non-controlling interest and equity holders of
the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals
to non-controlling interest result in gains and losses to the Group
that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from the non-
controlling interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic
activity are referred as jointly controlled entities. Investments in jointly
controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or losses is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the entity.
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2.3

Inthe Company’s statement of financial position, the investment in the
jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the jointly controlled entity are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement

for all interest bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method except for those designated at fair value through profit or 0ss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or

receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The

calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4

Non interest income

(@) Fee and commission income

b

2.5

=

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate are recognised as
an adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables;
held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments
at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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for the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
making. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit or
loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or financial liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and this is the basis on which information about the
financial assets and/or financial liabilities is provided internally
to the key management personnel.

(iii

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one or
more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash flows,
are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and for which the Group has no intention of trading immediately or
in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group was to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial investments
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rate,
exchange rate or market prices. They are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs. They are
subsequently held at fair value.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on settlement
date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be recognised in income statement.
However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when
the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in income statement; translation differences on
non-monetary securities are recognised in equity. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are based on
current bid prices. If there is no active market for a financial asset,
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about the following loss events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

e the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

¢ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant.
For exposures which are not individually significant, the Group will
assess impairment either individually or collectively. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment oss is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
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use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
inthe income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash flows of
a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics
which are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical l0ss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the
group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did
not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related
observable data from period to period which are indicative of changes
in the probability of losses in the group and their magnitude. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows
are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the l0ss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off decrease the amount of the allowance for loan impairment in the
income statement.

If, ina subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.7

(b) Assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in income statement, the impairment 10ss is
reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or
individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as renegotiated
loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All the
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include (i)
notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt Issuance
Programme (“DIP"), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail Bond Issuance
Programme (“RBIP") and (iii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
Programme (“MTN"). The Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by
the SPEs through the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme
are recorded as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of
financial position on consolidation of the SPES. These notes (including
MBS) are initially designated as either (i) financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or (i) other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative instruments)
designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge and at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recorded in the income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially recognised
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. The notes are subsequently stated at
amortised costs; any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective interest
method.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or losses,
being the difference between the redemption/repurchase amount and
the carrying amount, are recognised in the income statement in the
period in which the redemption/repurchase takes place.

2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on
a valuation technigue whose variables include only data from observable
markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises profits on
day 1.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
S0, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability,
or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.9

2.10

2.11

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method is used, is amortised to income statement
over the period to maturity.

S
=

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect income
statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through profit
or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for sale and
reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are derecognised. The
repossessed collateral assets are measured at lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates
resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments
of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its
chief operating decision maker.
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Income directly associated with each segment is included in determining

segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to each segment
by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms. Cost allocation
is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective segment and
apportionment of management overheads.

2.12 Foreign currency translation

@)

b

=

(©

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
inwhich the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

e Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

o All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

¢ Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported
in shareholders” equity as translation reserve.

¢ On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.13

2.14

2.15

investments, are taken to other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3 years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entity, and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
from investment in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the period
in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available
for carry-forward are recognised as an asset when it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can
be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale
investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

2.16 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave are
recognised when the absence occurs.

b

=

Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Company offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Company.

The Company’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as incurred
and are reduced by the portion of employer contributions being
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to full
vesting of the employer contributions.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



(d) LRI

fiaf P IE VR K B B AT 42 R B R MR
ok fiv & B 8 % B FAREBUREUR & - Al
AR BN A LERIES o i 82 7] B #E
A A AR R — IR S R el B9 B IE AT
ERILERRARE  AATEE R
BERL M R LA LM s I - RURER AR I
Mg e RFE2HRYPRRBB T @A
AN ST RERE

2.17 B4

i 75 5% 8135 5 RSB A S5 1 1 08 SR R Bk HE
EEME - METEERALARAER -
BRI AR A5 SRR - AIRER B

BERABE N B TR SIZR B AL
K (RRE AT SE B EREZ SRR REIE
KRz 7HE) st E 2 RERE ©

2.18 4

(a) BERD
REMNIERHEAREEERERE
BARE MDA KB ZIEL - ANEE
TEABAFDRIZKEHD - &
EROBE AR HBAARTEAE
BR) REAHMANERER RERN

@S HORBORRTA L BE
AN T HEBANT TR LEE
HfEHR AR o

BMEHEL
BMEBROER RSB AZERENE
R#Boy e o B3k 2z BETHA) - A&
EEEAHBAZMHIZBEBRL o
MERORHERERREEYER
FEIREESREBEEBIER
WERIR o FE YRR 4 HE B IR WK IR 3R
ENEZRERSARRREERA -
HOW N TATE B 42 S Bk (] 7€ [B] 3 R Y
FEAER - AAREBEARED
HEA IR EROBR T XI5k -
B B T I R 2.6 P &L & R BUR B
BR o

(b)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of each reporting period date are discounted
to present value.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.18 Leases

(@) Operating leases

=

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as lessee.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The Group
entered into finance leases primarily as lessor. Finance leases are
capitalised as receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic
rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
a finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment allowances are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.
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2.20

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and
other financial institutions.

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business of the Group is accounted for on the
annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future income
and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the current
accounting period. The underwriting result includes any adjustments
arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the Authorized
Institutions as defined in accordance with Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction of discounts,
include the reinsurance premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers,
the risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net
premiums are recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during
the time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums written
which are estimated to relate to risks and services subsequent to the
end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not
reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting period. For risk-
sharing business, 50% of the net risk premiums earned in a year is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a reasonable period of time and maintained
in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as considered by
directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve
can be made to meet excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency
Reserve can be released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the Group with
reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on one or
more insurance contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which the
Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised
as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable
from reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance assets are primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense.
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2.22

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued. These are non-insurance contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to
the income statement.

Dividend

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting period is
disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Financial risk management
Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group during the year are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of
assets through issuance of debt securities; and (jii) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect of mortgage loans
originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured by residential
properties in Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group's activities are
principally related to the use of financial instruments including cash,
loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters including
financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees, including the
Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Transaction Approval
Committee and Operational Risk Committee which report to Corporate
Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for asset
acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and Liability Committee
("ALCO") oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. In
addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment. The most important types of
risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency
risk and interest rate risk.
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3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio, investment
securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk on liquid funds and
investment securities is limited because the counterparties are mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies with very
high credit ratings.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio, which
is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses that have been
incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for managing
its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance portfolios,
the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers carefully, (i) adopt prudent asset purchasing criteria and insurance
eligibility criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv)
ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on mortgage
loans. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s mortgage
exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention paid
to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans and take
recovery action such as establishing relief plan with borrowers in order to
maximise recoveries. Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly
and impairment allowance is charged to income statement in accordance
with the guidelines approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are subject to regular
review. The principal collateral types for loan portfolio are mortgages
over properties, reserve funds and deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loan portfolio is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities are generally
unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial assets.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are monitored
against counterparty risk limits established in accordance with the
investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group. These
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counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the Credit
Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are
favourable to the Group (i.e. assets where their fair value is positive),
which in relation to derivatives is only a small fraction of the contract, or
notional values used to express the volume of instruments outstanding.
This credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, securities
or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash,
securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each
counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from
the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

(@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking account of
collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

AEEH AAR]
The Group The Company
R-B—BE H-TTAF  R-B-BE K -TINF
+=-HA=+-8B +-A=+—H +=A=+—-B |+-F=1+—~H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAIT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets:
ReERGHES Cash and short-term funds 5,902,649 4,067,798 5,769,509 3,924,752
PRI B Interest and remittance
[E X receivables 657,150 710,530 645,232 698,809
MTESmIA Derivative financial instruments 1,396,621 1,317,375 1,372,522 1,273,102
EREEF5E Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163
BHIEE Investment securities:
- AEHERES — available-for-sale debt
securities 1,934,627 2,587,344 1,934,627 2,587,344
- HFHEZEHES - held-to-maturity debt
securities 8,033,133 5,817,998 8,033,133 5,817,998
TERFIE & K& Prepayments, deposits and
Hih&ERE other assets 27,659 32,595 29,220 36,681
BRBREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 266,101 204,891 266,101
BEAERINER :  Off-balance sheet exposures:
BIISYELR Financial guarantees
(IRiIBEH (bt E (contractual amount under
B&aX)e5E) the MBS programmes) - - 805,868 1,277,647
48 R R IR Total risk-in-force 17,629,290 14,920,287 18,170,896 14,919,441
71,044,957 73,508,744 68,358,296 71,619,038
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(b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:

REE AAR]
The Group The Company

R-B-¥F R-TINT  R-P-BF HA-TIAF

+=A=+—8B +=A=+—H +=A=+—8B +=A=+—H

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FAT FHET FHAIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R EAIA AR E Neither past due nor impaired 34,647,589 42,854,818 30,842,770 39,972,073
BER{B KR (E Past due but not impaired 613,099 942,532 551,377 853,688
ERE Impaired 278 5,377 278 5,377
BERMAEERE Gross loan portfolio 35,260,966 43,802,727 31,394,425 40,831,138
B ERE Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011) (2,027) (13,975)
35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163

A 2 5 HR AR B 8 7T AR E 8 B 3R
ENEEERA2EAEERMANNA
SRR R TRIMA

The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor impaired
as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed by reference
to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

& Fi/NC]
The Group The Company
R-T—FF RZZTNF R-T—FF RZZZTNF
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H +=A=+—8 +=-A=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FHT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&Rl Grades:
123% 1t03 34,621,215 42,794,073 30,819,076 39,916,630
48 4 29 = 29 =
5% 5 26,345 60,745 23,665 55,443
34,647,589 42,854,818 30,842,770 39,972,073

1E3REREEERRKE LA
REREE R - WiFA NRKFHEER
L HEhnsRiE e MR ERE RO E MM

A BIEAEBRRE XA TR
IR EE S 2 B N 5s 16 B S 4K 1 am Y

e~
BN °

5 R BAEH AT B AR MR A AR o
ERIEROER

Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no previous
past due history; and with different levels of credit enhancements
in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and with
different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the collateral

held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.
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(c) BHAERBEENER (c) Loans past due but not impaired
LATARERARE BHERBER The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were past
ER@EAT : due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:
NEE VAN
The Group The Company

(d

=

(e)

R-B-8B& R_ZTTNF R-B-8B& RN _ZTTNF
+=-A=+—-B8 +=-A=+—H +=A=+—H +=A=+—H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAT THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B HRRRE ] Past due:
=@AKIAT Three months or less 609,632 933,096 547,910 844,512
FNEASKIAT - Six months or less but over
BiEEA=(EA three months 1,931 4,316 1,931 4,056
A7 8 A Over six months 1,536 5,120 1,536 5,120
e Total 613,099 942,532 551,377 853,688
EHmEEAMEE  Fair value of collateral and other
gz JEcrei=yiif: o) credit enhancement
N¥E 2,528,733 2,753,090 2,373,963 2,515,417
EEBRRENER (d) Individually impaired loans
AEBERARBRFAFAEERR R The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company before
EERHMSEEEENRSREN taking into account the cash flows from collateral held and credit
BRI EERE278,000%8 T (ZFF enhancement amounted to HK$278,000 (2009: HK$5,377,000).
JUE : 5,377,000 7T) °
REERARRRIFFERERDRE The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
B2 HEhnaa a1 A9 A A A 388,000 78 of the Group and the Company amounted to HK$388,000 (2009:
T (ZZFZNF : 9,177,00087T) ° HK$9,177,000).
EEHENER (e) Renegotiated loans
B EANEFRIEBANERAM BN Renegotiated loans are those that have been restructured due to
{EMEHFABRNER  NEBE % deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where the
EERIEREEMIBRA T AT EENE Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
%o RAERE - ZAE@HBNEFRE Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is
EEIEEARAE - WEEMELRP £ R restored to a normal status and managed together with other similar
BIE - PEBER KERNIRERARE accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators
] REHE A S (ST IR TR IR SR B R - or criteria which indicate that payment will most likely continue. These
ZEBRSHEETES - RADBH policies are kept under continuous review. Renegotiated loans that
FRENEEENERR =T —ZTF would otherwise be past due or impaired totalled HK$10,122,000
+=A=+—H%10,122,0007% T (= as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$3,304,000). A renegotiated loan
TN : 3,304,000/87T) © BRIFEE will continue to be disclosed as such unless the loan has been
PR EE] 163K 18 B 458 SR S 7~ (A performing in accordance with the rescheduled terms for a period
A RABEENERGEER LR of six months.
R o
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(f) Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security, as follows:

BREE
Carrying Amount
2010 2009
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(ERSSY/ES Residential property 3,861 3,317

WEEEEERRITER T &R
& AGEREARED REEES -
U Bl 2 B IS AR S 2R A R R At
BERT °
RIFZERILENIKRERS - AAF
EARENFEREEEFREBE
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RIBINBEEBRBOFETE (REE
- BEEEE)  TIRZMIIRIE
FPE BRI EHETE R HPIED AT o WNFE
HAGRAFE  AIRAESFEITA
EREAR ©

€

=

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness. Repossessed
property is classified in the statement of financial position within
other assets.

Investment securities

According to the Investment Guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment according to
rating categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on external
credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In
the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the issuers are
reported.

BEE

FHIE S

o HEES Held-to-
AEEREAT Available-for- maturity FEE]
)Y~‘:—§$ +=A=+-8 sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2010 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 795,142 2,367,263 3,162,405
AA- £ AA+/Aa3 E Aa1l AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 1,139,485 5,293,172 6,432,657
A- E A+/A3E A1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 372,698 372,698
4E Total 1,934,627 8,033,133 9,967,760

BHEZE

FIHRRE 5

Al & Held-to-
REE A AT Avalilable-for- maturity 4azE
WomEhaE+—F=+—0 sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHT FHT FAT
As at 31 December 2009 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 581,306 642,867 1,224,173
AA- & AA+/Aa3 & Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1l 2,006,038 4,330,310 6,336,348
A- & A+/A3E A1 A-t0 A+/A3 10 A1 = 844,821 844,821
ek Total 2,587,344 5,817,998 8,405,342
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KT T 20EE2E - & AR B A G A
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3.3 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s exposures
to market risk primarily arise from the interest rate management of the
entity’s financial instruments of different repricing characteristics. The
Group hedges a major proportion of its existing interest rate risk of the
fixed-rate bond issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest
rate swaps by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the Treasury
Department using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors. Strategies
on interest rate risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review the latest
conditions in the financial markets and the asset-liability portfolio mix.
The Treasury Department is responsible for monitoring financial market
movements and executing transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle
office monitors the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to
assess the potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions.
The results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor the
sensitivity of projected net interest income under different interest
rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through hedging
operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of the interest rate
curve as at 31 December 2010 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by around HK$3 million (2009: HK$18.7
million) and increase by around HK$3 million (2009: HK$13 million) for a
similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2010, if interest rates at that date had experienced
a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$1 million lower (2009: HK$5.4 million) and
the reserve would have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2009:
HK$2.9 million lower) as at 31 December 2010. If interest rates had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit before tax
for the year would have been higher by around HK$1 million (2009: HK$5
million) and the reserve would have been lower by less than HK$1 million
(2009: HK$2 million higher).
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As at 31 December 2010, with all other variables held constant, if the HK
dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit before tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million higher
(2009: HK$9.3 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by
100 price interest points against the US dollar, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$8 million lower (2009: HK$9.3 million).

As at 31 December 2010, with all other variables held constant, if the
HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against foreign
currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax for the year would
have been around HK$12 million higher (2009: HK$2.2 million lower).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax
for the year would have been around HK$12 million lower (2009: HK$2.2
million higher).

The 20 basis points and 100 price interest points increase or decrease
represent management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rate and exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
period end.

(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial position
and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies for investment
purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may
be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



Hith s
BT ¥ Other foreign POk
HKD usb currencies Total
AEE FHET TFHET FTHET FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N-T—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=-A=+—H
BE Assets
REREHES Cash and short-term funds 4,297,927 689,202 915,520 5,902,649
JE USRI 2. K% B 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 480,028 169,959 7,163 657,150
PTEEmMITE Derivative financial instruments 1,202,260 194,361 - 1,396,621
BERAEFEE Loan portfolio, net 24,015,262 11,243,675 - 35,258,937
BHEE - Investment securities:
- AEEE - available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
- HEZEEH — held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
HEEHEEIRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,720 130,720
BEEE Fixed assets 15,980 - 1,272 17,252
TERFIE « mE R Prepayments, deposits and
Hith&E other assets 27,504 - 155 27,659
BREREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 - - 204,891
BERE Total assets 35,798,042 17,795,565 1,439,371 55,032,978
=L Liabilities
FEATFI & Interest payable 382,750 104,310 6,493 493,553
FERTRRZR « FEFFISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,288,556 664 1,917 4,291,137
PTEEMTE Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
FERTFEIR Tax payable 133,560 - - 133,560
BEEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
REEE Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
BBITERES Debt securities issued 29,630,968 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,127,735
ERETIZBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,529,749 - - 1,529,749
BE#ERE Total liabilities 37,797,234 8,145,881 1,487,823 47,430,938
e Net position (1,999,192) 9,649,684 (48,452) 7,602,040
BEBBERIIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FEEEE T position* 2,167,017  (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

FEERBRINFEEFABINEITIES
BTA (EERNREASEREERE)
MER) NEZSRELNTFENZER -

movements and their fair values.
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# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
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HithyhEs
AT %t Other foreign FLk]
HKD usb currencies Total
EAF FHERT FHET FHET FHET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—FEF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—AH
&E Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 4,281,306 689,202 799,001 5,769,509
FEUH S M FE R Interest and remittance
receivables 468,279 169,959 6,994 645,232
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 1,178,161 194,361 - 1,372,522
EXEE TR Loan portfolio, net 20,148,723 11,243,675 - 31,392,398
BHRRE Investment securities:
- AIHE — available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
- BEZREH - held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
B A RIRE Investment in subsidiaries 3,103,572 - 102,060 3,205,632
HEESEEIEE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 120,554 120,554
EE&E Fixed assets 15,980 - - 15,980
FERRIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets 29,220 - - 29,220
BRREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 - - 204,891
BERE Total assets 34,984,322 17,795,565 1,413,150 54,193,037
BfE Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 380,428 104,310 6,493 491,231
FERTBRZX « FEfFFSZ  Accounts payable, accrued
MEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,791,012 641 613 4,792,266
THEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
FERFIE Tax payable 134,532 - - 134,532
REFIREE Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
RiREE Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
BEEITEBE S Debt securities issued 29,909,119 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,405,886
BERHE Total liabilities 37,046,742 8,145,858 1,486,519 46,679,119
HEFsE Net position (2,062,420) 9,649,707 (73,369) 7,513,918
BEBBERIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FEERET position # 2,167,017 (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

FEERBERINFRERREINEITES
BMTE (EZANREARARNEEKE
MER) LB EELNTENERE

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company'’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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H At ot
BT EViv Other foreign Rk
HKD usD currencies Total
REE FABT FAT FAT FHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
R_ZTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=—A=+—8
BE Assets
REREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,065,437 895,247 107,114 4,067,798
JE SR 2. K% FE 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 495,299 207,063 8,168 710,530
PTEEmMITE Derivative financial instruments 1,249,113 68,262 - 1,317,375
BREAFEE Loan portfolio, net 29,289,381 14,499,335 - 43,788,716
BHIEE Investment securities:
- AEEE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
- BFEEEH — held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
HEZEHEEIEE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 115,190 115,190
BEEE Fixed assets 19,000 - 2,257 21,257
TERFIR -« 'E Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hith&EE other assets 32,375 - 220 32,595
BREEE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
LERE Total assets 37,556,517 21,961,158 232,949 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 307,265 130,390 8,132 445,787
FERTRRZX « BT Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,272,541 598 1,038 4,274,177
PTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
FERIFIE Tax payable 138,329 - - 138,329
BERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 15,209 - - 15,209
R EE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BEITERES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
EBITIZBFES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 2,020,394 - - 2,020,394
BEERE Total liabilities 42,538,428 8,564,611 1,906,494 53,009,533
HEFE Net position (4,981,911) 13,396,547 (1,673,545) 6,741,091
BEEBBERIIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FaEFE position* 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FEERBERINEREFRIEINEITES
BTA (E2RNBEAREREEKE
MER) NEESEEE AT ENER °

movements and their fair values.

B—
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# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
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Hth ok
7STT ET Other foreign ok
HKD usb currencies Total
ZN/NG]| FHET FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—"H
BE Assets
RekRHES Cash and short-term funds 3,029,501 895,248 3 3,924,752
FEWR S F FE R Interest and remittance
receivables 483,614 207,063 8,132 698,809
TESRITA Derivative financial instruments 1,204,840 68,262 - 1,273,102
EFAEFEE Loan portfolio, net 26,317,828 14,499,335 - 40,817,163
BHRRE Investment securities:
- AIftHE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
o - held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
B QAR E Investment in subsidiaries 1,631,520 - 102,060 1,733,580
HEEHEEIRE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 120,554 120,554
EEEE Fixed assets 19,000 - - 19,000
FERRIE - Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hh &= other assets 36,681 - - 36,681
BRIREE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BERE Total assets 36,128,896 21,961,159 230,749 58,320,804
BE Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 303,695 130,390 8,132 442,217
FERTBRX « FERIFZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,909,762 574 613 4,910,949
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
JERTFRIR Tax payable 131,850 - - 131,850
EEFIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 15,213 - - 15,213
R EE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BBITERES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
BEEE Total liabilities 41,145,210 8,564,587 1,906,069 51,615,866
R FE Net position (5,016,314) 13,396,572 (1,675,320) 6,704,938
BEAGBRID Off-balance sheet net notional
FERERRE position * 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FEEABRINEREZRREINETES
BMTEA (EZRNREARRRRNEEKE
MER) NEESEEELANTENER °

ReRBRAVENEAR

RekEFIEARDESRIANRK
FAS BB TS E R BT
AR - ATEHNERRDES R

SR EER o 31T 5 A RIKF HY K
GEKAEEN A FENERRE &R
ERENKER - HRFXRER - 8

Z A Be 2 HERE - BN A RBETRRTHY

(b)

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company'’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both
its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as
a result of such changes but may reduce or create l0sses in the

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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event that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on
the level of interest rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the tables are the Group's assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity dates. The carrying amounts of derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group'’s

EaRR

) BEREESIRN [ TR S EH

exposure to interest rate movements, are included under the heading

B e “Non-interest bearing”.
ZEANLE
—@EAUL F— —EE
—@RRK E={@ER over ERE Fetl
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1 year RELLE  Non-interest o]
1month  to 3 months to1year  to5years Over5years bearing Total
FEE FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
The Group HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gt St 23 As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
BeREHHES Cash and short-term funds 5,205,425 413,890 238,879 - - 44,455 5,902,649
FECRIL B R EE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 657,150 657,150
TESMTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,396,621 1,396,621
EREEFE Loan portfolio, net 25,697,371 9,346,147 140,921 53,832 20,666 - 35,258,937
BHRE - Investment securities:
- AHEE - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- BEZRIH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
HEZGHIEERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 130,720 130,720
BEEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 17,252 17,252
FERRIE - BE Xk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets - - - - - 27,659 27,659
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204891 204,891
BEMBE Total assets 32,241,717 10,770,775 1,098,789 4,272,108 2,701,502 3,948,087 55,032,978
=1 Liabilities
FERFIE Interest payable - - - - - 493553 493,553
FEABRERN - FEABISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,163,057 - - - - 128,080 4,291,137
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
FERIFRIR Tax payable - - - - - 133560 133,560
RIEFIEE & Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 37,167 37,167
=R Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BRITEBE Debt securities issued 6,876,400 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,127,735
BBITIREE Mortgage-backed securities
issued 805,650 - 724,099 - - - 1,529,749
BfEEE Total liabilities 11,845,107 4,862,849 10,014,926 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,610,397 47,430,938
FIBBRERROLE * Total interest sensitivity gap* 20,396,610 5,907,926 (8,916,137) (8,779,884) (2,344,165)
FEFTETH Interest rate derivatives
(FAEFEY (notional amounts of
ZHELEH) net position) (12,049,324) (13,823,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

*ﬂiﬁ)\?ﬁi%%ﬂiﬂéi B BITE
BHEREBBITRBESNHTE -

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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=@EAUL
—EAUL -5 —FuE
—f@ERR ZE=@A over ERFE TR
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year AFLE Non-interest g
1month  to 3 months to 1year to 5years Over 5 years bearing Total
AT FiER FERT FiER FET TR FET TR
The Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
R-T—FF As at 31 December 2010
+=-A=+—H
BE Assets
BeNEHRES Cash and short-term funds 5,124,400 378,500 226,950 - - 39,659 5,769,509
FEWLF B R FE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 645,232 645,232
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,372,522 1,372,522
EREE 58 Loan portfolio, net 21,838,606 9,346,147 137,831 52,929 16,885 - 31,392,398
BHRE Investment securities:
- AH#EE - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- FEZEEHH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
M A RIRE Investment in subsidiaries 3,094,913 - 3,045 889 3725 103,060 3,205,632
HEEHERIRE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
BE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 15,980 15,980
FERRE - B2 Rk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets - - - - - 29,220 29,220
BRI EE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204,891 204,891
AERE Total assets 31,396,840 10,735,385 1,086,815 4,272,094 2,701,446 4,000,457 54,193,037
=1 Liabilities
FERT RIS Interest payable - - - - - 491,231 491,231
FEHBRSR » FEfHFSX  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,630,792 - - - - 161,474 4,792,266
TESHIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
FERH IR Tax payable - - - - - 134532 134,532
BIEFIHAE Deferred tax liabilities _ - _ _ _ 37,167 37,167
RERAE Insurance liabilities - - _ - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BBITERES Debt securities issued 7,154,551 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
BB Total liabilities 11,785,343 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,642,441 46,679,119
FISSREROLEEE *  Total interest sensitivity gap* 19,611,497 5,872,536 (8,204,012) (8,779,898) (2,344,221)
FIERFTETR Interest rate derivatives
(FAisEn (notional amounts of net
ZHELHE) position) (11,349,324) (14,523,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

CRFATESRIASESHEBTE

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities issued.
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=EAMNE
—EAMNE B —EH
—fEAR Z={8R Over EhE et
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1 year AFLAE  Non-interest kil
1month  to3months to 1 year to5years  Over 5years bearing Total
AEE FHT FHT FHT FHT FHET FHT FTHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTTNFE+=H Asat31December 2009
=+-8
BE Assets
HekEHES Cash and short-term funds 3,660,995 342,787 5,679 - - 58,337 4,067,798
FE RIS R EE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 710,530 710,530
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1317375 1,317,375
B4 FE Loan portfolio, net 36,614,171 6,978,278 123,890 57,473 14,904 - 43,788,716
BHRE - Investment securities:
- AMEHE - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
- HHEZEH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5,817,998
HREGIEERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 115,190 115,190
EE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 21,257 21,257
ERRE - ZE Kk Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets - - - - - 32,595 32,595
BRI EE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BEHE Total assets 41,978,700 9,252,181 1,326,038 3,155,361 491,239 3,547,105 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
FERTRILE Interest payable - - - - - 445,787 445,787
FETARFR ~ FEfTRZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,133,740 - - - - 140437 4274177
TESHTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
FE R IR Tax payable - - - - - 138,329 138,329
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,209 15,209
REEBE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BB TERES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 44,495,073
BBITIRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,051,120 - 229116 740,158 - - 2020,3%
B a8 Total liabilities 11,228,011 6,293,644 6,893,550 20,428,930 5,805,072 2,360,326 53,009,533
S EUKERROAE5E * Total interest sensitivity gap* 30,750,689 2,958,537 (5,567,512) (17,273,569) (5,313,833)
MELTET A Interest rate derivatives
(R FEr (notional amounts of net
BESHE) position) (13,406,010) (13,453,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

FRFEATESRTAEESHEHTE
BEFREBITIRBESNZE -

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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=fEAE
—EARE E—F —FpE
—fERRA Z=EA Over ERF et B
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year RFMKE  Non-interest Eot
1month  to3months to 1year toSyears  Over5years bearing Total
P /NE]] FHET T FHT T FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETHEF As at 31 December 2009
+fﬁ =t+—A
EE Assets
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,550,348 325,750 - - - 48,654 3,924,752
JFEUCH B R FE 5k Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 698,809 698,809
TESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1273102 1,273,102
EEA HRE Loan portfolio, net 33,645,048 6,978,278 123,890 55,044 14,903 - 40,817,163
BHEE Investment securities:
- AEHE — available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3613064
- HAEEDH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5817998
B ATIEE Investment in subsidiaries 1,628,130 - - 2,390 - 103,060 1,733,580
HEEHEEERE Investment in a jointly controlled
entity = = = = = 120,554 120,554
EE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 19,000 19,000
TERRIE  Re Rk Prepayments, deposits and other
HihEE assets - - - - - 36,681 36,681
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BELE Total assets 40,527,060 9,235,144 1,320,359 3,155,322 491,238 3,591,681 58,320,804
=L Liabilities
FERHR B Interest payable - - - - - 442,217 442,217
FESERFR - FEfSFISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,724,843 = = = = 186,101 4,910,949
TTAESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
FERHEIE Tax payable - - - - - 131,850 131,850
EEMRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,213 15,213
ReaE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1462318
BEEITEEES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
AfEmE Total liabilities 10,767,999 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 2,395,945 51,615,866
FESRXERRO4%8 * Total interest sensitivity gap* 29,759,061 2,941,500  (5,344,075) (16,533,450)  (5,313,834)
FIRPTAET A Interest rate derivatives (notional
(FRFEN amounts of net position)
LEEH) (12,481,010) (14,378,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

*RAATESRTAS T BYHEHITE
EEFHZE -

3.4 REBEREME
mBETEBREAEEREEERE S ME
Iéiiik%?%&?% A ENERRERESHN

- AEEEBREAESRARRL -
jﬁEFﬁEIH ZHARAMR AR TR R
BEomARMRL - AEBERARE SRR
IRHEEBRERAEFHENEEERS -
EEABEEZEEEHNERDESHIR
ETEE

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities issued.

3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to repay its
payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of loans. Liquidity
risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows and outflows of funds
on a daily basis and projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of
funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Group has established
diversified funding sources to support the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are
regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(@) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

A3 58

IEOZ]SE

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under non-
derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will be
settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will be
settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities as at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual
maturity. The Group’s derivatives include interest rate swaps that
will be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that will be

e H o settled on gross basis.
=AML
—EAUE E-F —ELE
—f@AA E={@EA Over ERE
Upto Over1month 3 months Over 1 year AENE ok
1month  to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FEH Fitn TR FERT FHT Fign TR
The Group HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NR-T—TF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+-—H
EOTER S Non-derivative cash outflows
afE Liabilities
BEITEEE S Debt securities issued (3,061,008)  (4,276,684) (10,993,225) (18,139,060 (5,411,079) (41,881,056)
BEITRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued (28,149) (48,586) (1,297,405  (165,619) - (1,539,759)
(3,089,157)  (4,325,270) (12,290,630) (18,304,679) (5,411,079) (43,420,815)
FTEBRRA/(RE) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BT EELHER Derivative financial instrument
PTESBMTIA : settled:
- RFEEEE - on net basis 1,664 (9,484) (3,477) (19,051) 395 (29,953)
- MR — 0N gross basis
mit4aEE Total outflow (1,722,875)  (2,233,067) (4,795,337) (9,668,024) - (18,419,303)
MALREE Total inflow 1,720,668 2,235,002 4,813,110 9,668,812 - 18,437,592
(543) (7,549) 14,296 (18,263) 395 (11,664)
ZEANE
—EAUL E—F —ELE
—fERA Z=M@R over ERE
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months over 1year RENL i
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
AAF FHET FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
The Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
R-E—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
IEPTER SR Non-derivative cash outflows
afE Liabilities
BBITEEE Debt securities issued (3,339,195) (4,276,684) (10,993,225) (18,139,060) (5,411,079) (42,159,243)
PTERSHRA /(R Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
R THIEEEER Derivative financial instrument
TESHMTIA : settled:
- FEREE - onnet basis 1,664 (9,484) (3,477) (19,051) 395 (29,953)
- MREEE - 0n gross basis
Difutst- Total outflow (1,722,875) (2,233,067) (4,795,337) (9,668,024) - (18,419,303)
MALREE Total inflow 1,720,668 2,235,002 4,813,110 9,668,812 - 18,437,592
(543) (7,549) 14,296 (18,263) 395 (11,664)
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=EAMNE
—EAKE E—F —FBE
—@AR Z=EA Over ERF
Upto  Over 1month 3 months Qver 1 year RENE ki)
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to S years Over 5 years Total
REE FHT T FHET FTHT FHT T
The Group HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZNF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
HOTHER @ Non-derivative cash outflows
=L Liabilities
BEITERES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715)  (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
BEITREES Mortgage-backed securities issued (49,315) (30,227) (401,388)  (1,611,674) - (2,092,604)
(1,167,938)  (3,745,549)  (8,319,346) (29,695,389)  (7,500,004) (50,428,226)
PTERSRHRA/CRL) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BT EELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHESRTIA : settled:
- FERE%E - 0n net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- WREEE%E - 0N gross basis
et st-c Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371)  (23,236,701)
TMALREE Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
=EARE
—EAMKLE 1 —E b
—@EAR ==f8R Over ZRF
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months Over 1 year RAENRE fotiil
1 month to 3months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
ANRA] FEL T FHT FHEL FEL T
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
RZTTNEF As at 31 December 2009
+—-—A=+—H
IPTER L Non-derivative cash outflows
=L Liabilities
BB TEBSES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715,322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715)  (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
PTEBRESRAN/(RE) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTHIEELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHEERMIA : settled:
- JFEREE - 0n net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- HEEE - 0N gross basis
T AEEE Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371)  (23,236,701)
AR Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4187431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
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(b) Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the

end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

—@EAE ZEAME
E=EA -5 —ENE
ENEFEIE —{ER A Over Over FRE
Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months Over1year  HELLE R )
on demand 1month  3months  to1year to5years Over5 years Undated Total
FEE FHRT Fitn Fitn FHT FERT Fitn Fign FHT
The Group HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
RoT—%E As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
ReENEHES Cash and short-term funds 49,471 5,200,410 407,992 244,776 - - - 5,902,649
BEREE Loan portfolio 8,004 669,748 816,647 4,105,789 18,246,086 11,412,991 1,701 35,260,966
BHIE Investment securities
- A E - available-for-sale - 499,888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- BEEIH — held-to-maturity - - - 1,068,126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
BRBREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
57,475 6,370,046 1,807,365 5,975,305 22,825,656 14,093,827 1,675,931 52,805,605
&f& Liabilities
RiREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BRI TESES Debt securities issued - 2,989,516 4,106,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,127,735
BEITIRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued - 27934 69,328 1,269,451 163,036 - - 1,529,749
- 3,017,450 4,176,299 11,741,321 16,676,747 5,045,667 1,773,665 42,431,149
—@EAULE Z=EAML
E=EA -5 —ENE
ENEFZHA —f{ERRA over over ERE
Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months Over 1year AENUE IR k)
on demand 1month  3months  to1year to5years Over5 years Undated Total
EAF FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
The Company HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
NR-E—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
HeEREHES Cash and short-term funds 36,918 5,127,141 378,500 226,950 - - - 5,769,509
Ex4Es Loan portfolio 7,406 538,747 746,117 3,789,361 17,322,877 8,988,252 1,665 31,394,425
BHIRE Investment securities
- AMEEE - available-for-sale - 499888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- FHEZEH - held-to-maturity - - - 1,068,126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
44,324 6,165,776 1,707,343 5,641,051 21,902,447 11,669,088 1,675,895 48,805,924
BiE Liabilities
H e RIA Other payable - 14112 27,809 270,949 154,864 - - 467,734
REEBE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BETEEES Debt securities issued - 3,267,667 4,106,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
- 3,281,779 4,134,780 10,742,819 16,668,575 5,045,667 1,773,665 41,647,285

—Z—ZFFH, ANNUAL REPORT 2010

139



140 #w&piEH*EME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—@ARE Z=@EARE
Z==f@R o —FLAL

EEF ) £ —EAR Over Over ERF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months ~ Over 1 year AFERE g0 kil
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year toSyears Over5years Undated Total
REE FHET T FHT FTHT FHT FHT FHT FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZTTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 57,248 3593937 410,934 5,679 - - - 4,067,798
EEE Loan portfolio 11,181 1,039,425 879,296 4,454,273 18,062,261 19,331,884 24407 43,802,727
BHIRE Investment securities
- Al E — available-for-sale - 1,201524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
- BAEZEIE - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRIREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266101 266,101
68,429 5989957 2,858,563 5,938,354 21,587,938 19,808,219 1,316,228 57,567,688
=L Liabilities
RigEE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1462318 1462318
BB TESES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
BE1TIZBES  Mortgage-backed securities issued - 53,369 64,783 361,301 1,540,941 - - 2,020,394

- 1292062 4728730 7,730,843 26,858,972 5904860 1,462,318 47,977,785

—@ARE Z=@EARE
==f8A = —FRE

il —fEAR over Over ZREF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months ~ Over 1year REHNE fadiee) ksl
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to5years Over5years Undated Total
E/NE]| FHT T FEL FHET FHL T FET FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=—BA=+—~”
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 44,740 3573012 307,000 - - - - 3924752
BEEE Loan portfolio 9,543 891,005 801,897 4,129,092 16,885,678 18,090,064 23,859 40,831,138
BHIRE Investment securities
- AIEHE - available-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025720 3,613,064
- HEEIH - held-to-maturity = 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266101 266,101
54,283 5820,612 2,677,230 5,607,494 20,411,355 18,566,399 1,315,680 54,453,053
=L Liabilities
H fth AT RRIE Other payable 13,246 27,218 118,075 429,786 2,783 - - 591,108
RIREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BB TEESES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073

13246 1,265911 4,782,022 7,799,328 25320814 5904860 1,462,318 46,548,499

B Eatsh - USRS R ER - TN FRIE R
HMEE  BAFE - BARE - EBAFH
X RENTIE  BHSET-A=1—8
REET A 1218 A MU Bl sk E35& - TER AR
MEOEMEEMEE - AFEHAR+ A
=T —HEFFE@12EA A k@K

B

o

TF
fa

In addition to the above, interest and remittance receivables,
prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and tax payable are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from 31 December. Other assets and
liabilities included in the statement of financial position are expected
to be recovered or settled in a period more than twelve months after
31 December.
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3.5 Mortgage insurance risk

The Group offers mortgage insurance which provides cover to the
Approved Sellers/Servicers for first credit losses of up to 25% - 30% of
the property value of a residential mortgage loan with loan-to-value
ratio below 90% at origination, or other ratios as specified from time
to time.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the
insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random
and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because
the frequency or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and
benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using
statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected outcome
will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected
across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type of mortgage
insurance risks accepted and within each of the key categories to
achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability
of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors.
The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a slump in the
local property market. Economic downturn, which may cause a rise in
defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims. A drop in property
prices, where the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent insurance
eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set aside for meeting
future claim payments, the Group calculates technical reserves on
prudent liability valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share reinsurance
from its approved mortgage reinsurers and excess-of-l0ss reinsurance
arrangement in an effort to limit its risk exposure. The Group conducts
comprehensive assessment including the financial strength and credit
ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the approved
selection framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews.

ZZ—-ZFFH, ANNUAL REPORT 2010

141



147 w&piEHmEME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.6

HE-_T-TF+-_A=+—H8 ' WX
IREIBRIB NN 1% + Bl 7S F 5 B i AT A
R A 400 B BT (ZTTNEF - 170875
7T) o fHARREEETEE1%  BIARFE
B Bt AT I #6532 iN400 8 BT (Z 2T A
F 1708BTT) °

EMEERBBENATE

ATEEHENEAN TS AN RERTA
F e SRS R ©

TRBAL RN AEEREARRNKIZDF
BEER2INeREENBENREER
RFfE - EABRREREENRFE
MmELERNARGEHEENAFE - 2R
B EA R FEBENERTE &S

FEEHREEABIES o

i

3.6

As at 31 December 2010, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$4 million (2009: HK$1.7
million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by 1%, profit before tax for
the year would have been HK$4 million (2009: HK$1.7 million) higher.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and the characteristics of the financial instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts and
fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented on the
Group's statement of financial position at their fair value. Bid prices are
used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied for
liabilities. For all other financial instruments that are not measured at fair
value, the fair value is approximately equal to their carrying value.

RRTE{E AFE
Carrying value Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 5,902,649 4,067,798 5,902,649 4,067,798
BREA 55 Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 43,788,716 35,258,937 43,788,716
BHIE Investment securities
- BEZREH - held-to-maturity 8,033,133 5,817,998 8,183,264 5,935,727
=i Financial liabilities
Hiva s Other liabilities 4,163,057 4,133,740 4,163,057 4,133,740
BRI TESES Debt securities issued 37,190,615 41,648,925 37,193,268 41,655,241
B BEITIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,529,749 2,020,394 1,524,932 2,011,421
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The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate
the fair values of financial instruments:

(@) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated fair
value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than 3 months,
is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
Therefore, the fair value of the deposits is approximately equal to
their carrying value.

(b) Loan portfolio, net, and mortgage-backed securities issued under
the MBS Pass-Through Programme

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An insignificant
portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore, the
carrying value of loan portfolio and the mortgage-backed securities
issued is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.
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(c) Investment securities

=

=

Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held to
maturity, assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at
fair value. Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available,
adiscounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value of
other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial
statements

There is no (2009: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market data.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair

value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

e Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1),

¢ Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

e Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3.7

*5E FAF
The Group The Company
- ®ZE o o] $ZE et
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Fitn FHT Fitn Fitn FHT Fi#RT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-F—FE As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
&aE Assets
MTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,396,621 1,396,621 - 1,372,522 1,372,522
BHIRE Investment securities
- AEEE - available-for-sale 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966
1,469,339 3,331,248 4,800,587 1,469,339 3,307,149 4,776,488
=1 Liabilities
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments - 44,372 44,372 - 44,372 44,372
IR FEREF 48 A LA Debt securities issued designated as at
NFEZ(ET AR fair value through profit or loss upon
KB B TERE initial recognition - 1,937,120 1,937,120 - 1,937,120 1,937,120
- 1,981,492 1,981,492 - 1,981,492 1,981,492
AEE AR7
The Group The Company
ER Ffd =4 Pt 2B E-E et
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
THT FHT THT TET TR THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTNF As at 31 December 2009
+=-—A=+—H
BE Assets
PTHESRMITA Derivative financial instruments - 1317375 1,317,375 - 1273102 1,273,102
BHIRE Investment securities
- AfHE - available-for-sale 1,104,186 2,508,878 3613064 1,104,185 2,508,878 3,613,064
1,104,186 3,826,253 4,930,439 1,104,186 3,781,980 4,886,166
aE Liabilities
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments - 158,246 158,246 - 158,246 158,246
I ERETEE A LA Debt securities issued designated as at
NHEZ L AEE fair value through profit or loss upon
KB B TERE initial recognition - 2,846,148 2,846,148 - 2,846,148 2,846,148
- 3,004,394 3,004,394 - 3,004,394 3,004,394

AEBRADRBESFGTRABR
HEeRTA

=8

EXEH
REEEIREAR (HREE E RN
AREE R [#zm | BE) BT

o AFEBRIITHERBMNMEKAE R &K
(T AR HIEMEARRE

o BRAEEFEL BN
BRERER G 5

6 DAEE RS

7/

Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial instruments
recognised as Level 3.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

¢ To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial Secretary
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Financial Secretary”);

¢ T0 safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ T0 support the Group’s stability and growth;

¢ T0 allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to optimise
risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

e TO maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management in accordance with the guidelines issued by the
Financial Secretary. The minimum Capital-to-Assets ratio (“CAR") stipulated
in the guidelines is 5%. The CAR is calculated as a ratio, expressed as a
percentage, of the Group’s total capital base to the sum of its total on-
balance sheet and total off-balance sheet risk-weighted exposures.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the guidelines issued by
the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely breach of the CAR guidelines
must be reported to the Financial Secretary.

The Group's capital base comprises share capital, retained profits and
contingency reserve created by appropriations of retained profits,
allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment and other
reserves.

The capital adequacy framework takes into account different levels of risk
embedded in assets. Conversion factors are applied to assets according
to their nature and reflecting an estimate of underlying risks, taking into
account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar treatment is adopted
for off-balance sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the
more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and the ratios
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. During the year, the

HIERIFTBERIE © Group complied with all of the capital requirement set by the Financial
Secretary.
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
fi&Zx Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE = A Retained profits 4,561,624 3,925,694
B2 {6 4 Contingency reserve 437,435 189,833
HAotb Other reserves 265,057 160,329
AR A ERRE Allowance for loan impairment under

FiriE2 i collective assessment 2,029 14,011
BRGREE Total capital base 7,266,145 6,289,867
BAREEELE CAR 10.8% 9.5%
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on
a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowersina
group or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

4.2 Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair value,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are validated
before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk,
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair
value of financial instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

4.3 Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of a deterioration
inthe financial health of the investment, industry and sector performance,
changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances defined
in HKAS 39, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for profits tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities such
as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest
the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
business. The Group is also organised in such a way that performance is
measured at Group level in a single segment for mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the mortgage
business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong Kong, Korea,
Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes the mortgage business
in Hong Kong. The segment for non-Hong Kong includes the mortgage assets in
Korea, investment in a jointly controlled entity in Malaysia and investment in a
subsidiary in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China. The Chief Operating Decision
maker assesses the performance based on geographical segments.

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information for operating
segments of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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& HEE “aE
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-_T-FTF+-HA=+—HIFEE Yearended 31 December 2010
FEWA Interest income 905,246 236,137 1,141,383
BT H Interest expense (96,906) (73,896) (170,802)
EFEA Net interest income 808,340 162,241 970,581
HabgA Other income 583,623 4,176 587,799
LA Operating income 1,391,963 166,417 1,558,380
4R sT Operating expenses (136,842) (34,583) (171,425)
RET R E BT A4S & 5 A Operating profit before impairment 1,255,121 131,834 1,386,955
BORE R B Write-back of loan impairment allowances 16,663 - 16,663
FEAE L RESI EEER T Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 2,259 2,259
R A& A Profit before taxation 1,271,784 134,093 1,405,877
MIA Taxation (172,015)
N A Profit for the year 1,233,862
FARNEARRALZ Capital expenditure during the year 8,802 64 8,866
B BB “wesE
HongKong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FAT FHTT FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE_ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2009
FE U A Interest income 1,056,085 282,216 1,338,301
MBS Interest expense (176,106) (124,488) (300,594)
S BUA Net interest income 879,979 157,728 1,037,707
E AU Other income 230,584 1,004 231,588
IR Operating income 1,110,563 158,732 1,269,295
R Operating expenses (123,337) (34,499) (157,836)
R E AT A& &5 5 Operating profit before impairment 987,226 124,233 1,111,459
EROR(E R Write-back of loan impairment allowances 36,837 - 36,837
FEAG RIS E S5 Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 1,922 1,922
BRAT AT A Profit before taxation 1,024,063 126,155 1,150,218
HiIA Taxation (144,186)
RNE A Profit for the year 1,006,032
FANEARRZ Capital expenditure during the year 15,111 2,734 17,845
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&E FEE FEE]
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
T T Fi#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R==F—-F&+=-H=+—8H As at 31 December 2010
DEEE Segment assets 42,832,359 12,069,899 54,902,258
HEZEHIEBRE Investment in a jointly controlled entity - 130,720 130,720
BERE Total assets 42,832,359 12,200,619 55,032,978
DEEAE Segment liabilities 35,477,850 11,953,088 47,430,938
B B k)
Hongkong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
\ZZEENFF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2009

DIEEE Segment assets 44,027,821 15,607,613 59,635,434
HEZEHIEERE Investment in a jointly controlled entity - 115,190 115,190
BEBE Total assets 44,027,821 15,722,803 59,750,624
HEEEE Segment liabilities 37,511,123 15,498,410 53,009,533

6. FIBUWA 6. Interestincome

RNEE
The Group

2010 2009
T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREE Loan portfolio 855,015 1,060,315
HeEREHES Cash and short-term funds 31,311 36,328
BHIEE — EW Investment securities — listed 75,054 82,176
BHIEE — LT Investment securities — unlisted 180,003 159,482
1,141,383 1,338,301

REFH BN BHE323,000/87T (—ZE
488,000787T) 1E B E BB E 7R A FERTFI S U ©

JUF ¢ Included within interest income is HK$323,000 for the year (2009: HK$488,000)
with respect to interest income accrued on individually impaired loans.

7. FIEZH 7. Interest expense
RNEE
The Group
2010 2009
FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAFNBEERNRITER - Bank loans, debt and MBS issued wholly repayable
BBITER RIRIEES within 5 years 143,647 241,376
BERAFABSERNE T Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
BB MRIBES within 5 years 27,155 59,218
170,802 300,594

REER S HAIE167,000,000/87T (Z=ZF N Included within interest expenses are HK$167 million (2009: HK$221 million) for
£ 1 221,000,000787T) WIELAA

SNETRAE

AFER(EAR

financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.
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8. HuhlgA 8. Otherincome
REE
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRFENE R KA Early prepayment fees and late charges 18,278 19,742
BB & 558 (FIEE14) Net insurance premiums earned (Note 14) 417,931 149,429
ME 5 =58 Exchange difference 35,479 5,833
CRITAAFEES Change in fair value of financial instruments 309 13,011
AT & TR E BURR BURA Dividend income from available-for-sale listed investments 43,595 42,224

S AT B IR A M W F R Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
(FzE11)) (Note 11) 64,752 5,277
Eih Others 7,455 (3,928)
587,799 231,588

SMIARNTFEEZIEENATSIENEAF
() FEERAFEE AR T AEAFE K
188,000,000 77t (ZZZ N4 : [E518783,300,000
PETT) R E I8 B A F{EE518 183,000,000 7 7T
(ZZEZT L4 : Yrz5785,400,000787T) ¢ K& (i) 5
EAURAFES T ABRNITETAAFER
#= 10,000,000 77T (=T N4F + [E518 31,600,000
BIT) RIEEUAAFEZ G ABENEETE
15 EH A TERE 15,000,000/8 7T (ZEFTNEF ¢

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of (i)
HK$188 million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair value
hedge (2009: HK$783.3 million loss) and HK$183 million fair value loss on the
hedged items (2009: HK$785.4 million gain); and (ii) HK$10 million fair value
gain on derivatives designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2009:
HK$31.6 million loss) and HK$15 million fair value loss on issued debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or l0ss (2009: HK$42.5 million gain).

%5 42,500,00087T) °

9. HEXH

9. Operating expenses

REH
The Group

2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

BB Staff costs
e kEd Salaries and benefits 107,797 102,633
BIREKAN — REE-REE Pension costs - defined contribution plans 5,706 5,608

BN Premises

e Rental 7,800 7,268
E At Others 6,679 7,050
EEME Directors’ emoluments - =
e (FzE24) Depreciation (Note 24) 12,928 10,890
B B A AR TS Financial information services 5,510 5,593
B & Consultancy fees 12,494 6,702
Hfhas Other operating expenses 12,511 12,092
171,425 157,836
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10. Auditor’s remuneration

REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Audit services 880 867
EH AR5 Other services 859 1,186
1,739 2,053
1. HETTHEHEREMYE 11. Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
R investments
NEE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
S AT B 1R A A a8 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments:
- R—A—HEHENFEEANER - realisation of amounts recognised in reserves up to
BIIE (FEE31) 1 January (note 31) 40,554 3,522
- AEEEERFE — net gain arising in current year 24,198 1,755
64,752 5,277
12. ERR B B3 12. Write-back of loan impairment allowances
AEE
The Group
2010 2009
FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFORE R Write-back of loan impairment allowances —
— #EFHE (HEE20(0)) collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) 16,663 36,837

—ZE—-ZFHEIR ANNUAL REPORT 2010

151



152 @&piEHEEME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. BilE 13. Taxation
(@) REEeRBERATBRPTIES (@) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REH
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEMEE Hong Kong profits tax
- RNEEFRHE — Provision for current year 171,681 126,419
- BEFERETR — Underprovision in prior years 16 15,110
171,697 141,529

RIER A Deferred taxation

- NFELH — Charge for current year 318 2,657
172,015 144,186

B B A 0 i PR R B A AR
16.5% (ZFTNF 1 16.5%) T RaH
REBFEHAR - BEHENRE
ER16.5% (ZTTAF 1 16.5%) ME
ERNKA TR AR E

48 B ) 4 AT s Pl BB SRR PR
BRI EER R BERIT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Deferred
taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5%).

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRAE AT A Profit before taxation 1,405,877 1,150,218
1#£16.5% (ZZZLF © 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of
KB RETE 16.5% (2009:16.5%) 231,970 189,786
FEAE FERIEFI B B2 E 8 Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlled
B2 entity (373) (317)
BAHBHUA Income not subject to taxation (82,023) (91,044)
I k0] b- Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 22,425 30,651
BEFEEETR Underprovision in prior years 16 15,110
AR Taxation charge 172,015 144,186
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(b) BMEMRRERANTIARES :

(b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:
AEE ARQH
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
FHT FAT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BBNISHRE Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 133,560 138,329 134,532 131,850
BIERIEA S Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 15,209 37,167 15,213
170,727 153,538 171,699 147,063

R_ZE—ZEFR_ZTTNF+_A=+
—HB  BEIAEAREERELERIE

BEHIR (BE)/ ABENZEEAR IS
RENZEINT

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at 31

December 2010 and 2009.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

AEE
The Group
ER R
MRBIBIE Impairment
Accelerated allowances RYEEE REmEH
tax and HEEE Fair value Cash flow k|
depreciation provisions Tax losses changes hedges Total
FAT FHT FHT FET FAT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTZNF—HFA—H As at 1 January 2009 2,497 (13,995) (10) (4,223) (13,173) (28,904)
PR ZR A HIRR Charged to the income statement 951 1,696 10 - - 2,657
ARSI (Mi5E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
RZTZENF+=A As at 31 December 2009
=+t—H 3,448 (12,299) = 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
PAUEER A (BEE)/ Ik (Released)/charged to the income
statement (207) 525 — — — 318
PR (FiE31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - - 17,307 4,333 21,640
R-E—F¥&£+=A As at 31 December 2010
=+—8H 3,241 (11,774) - 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
AR
The Company
HEE
IRBIBIE Impairment
Accelerated allowances NFEEE) RETEH
tax and Fair value Cash flow fck)
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
FHT FHT THT FHT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZTTNF—A—H As at 1 January 2009 2,497 (13,990) (4,223) (13,173) (28,889)
PUES R AR Charged to the income statement 951 1,695 - - 2,646
PAREESEATOR (FI3E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
R_ZTZNF+=A As at 31 December 2009
== 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
PUEER A (BE)/ Bk (Released)/charged to the income statement (207) 521 - - 314
AR (FF5E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 17,307 4,333 21,640
NR-E—F¥&£+=AH As at 31 December 2010
=1x—H 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
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14. IRIBRIFEF K 2R AR

14. Revenue account for mortgage insurance

business
REE
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIRE Gross premiums written 862,282 839,042
BREBRIRE Reinsurance premiums (70,925) (54,392)
RE B R (MIRE 27(0) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 791,357 784,650
Ao ERR B B N SR Increase in unearned premiums, net (367,081) (613,572)
BEimAp R & F 5 (KizE27() Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 424,276 171,078
EARRR (MizE27(0) Claims incurred (Note 27(b)) (6,345) (21,649)
BE%EMEBREFE (H3E8)  Net premiums earned after provisions (Note 8) 417,931 149,429
EREAY (FiEa) Management expenses (Note a) (22,248) (14,399)
AR Underwriting gains 395,683 135,030

[ Note

(@) EEFXRNFEIKLE N —D

15. REE R F

(@) The management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 9.

15. Profit for the year

RN BB SRR T E A s A A& 1,199,473,000
BIL (ZZTTAFE © 973,951,000/87T) °

The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of HK$1,199,473,000 (2009: HK$973,951,000).

16. K2 16. Dividend
Vi N/NE|
The Company
2010 2009
FHET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAR BB T AR 0.175 8T Proposed dividend of HK$0.175
(ZZEZNF : 02577L) (2009: HK$0.25) per ordinary share 350,000 500,000

=
T——FNWA+-H EFEE=E
REAR B & EBAR0.17578 7T
BYEIBR —E—TF+ A=

T TEEM-RRAFERESEET -

The dividend paid in 2010 in respect of 2009 was HK$500 million. The directors

@Ik _ZF—  proposed a final dividend in respect of 2010 of HK$0.175 per ordinary share
70 o LEIEEEEE  on 12 April 2011. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable

+—H®&FE  asat 31 December 2010.
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17. &€ REHES 17. Cash and short-term funds
AEE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAIT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIRE Cash at banks 49,470 57,248 36,918 44,740
SRITEEFER Time deposits with banks 5,853,179 4,010,550 5,732,591 3,880,012

5,902,649 4,067,798 5,769,509 3,924,752

HEEREXRMS - ReRFRMESEE B For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
TERZ BB =[E A NEI B4R o comprise the following balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of transaction.

AEE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fi#T AT Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
$RIT7IH S Cash at banks 49,470 57,248 36,918 44,740
$R1TRE HAER Time deposits with banks 4,495,604 3,770,871 4,404,640 3,646,012
B RZERIESIER Cash and cash equivalents 4,545,074 3,828,119 4,441,558 3,690,752
18. FEUFI B R EERR 18. Interest and remittance receivables
AEE V7N
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
F#T AT Fi#T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR B IER FEUFIE. - Interest receivable from
- FIEIEHAEH — interest rate swap contracts 497,467 443,221 495,491 440,007
- BHEE - investment securities 81,330 77,432 81,330 77,432
- RITEHTFR - time deposits with banks 2,345 169 2,175 131
EREAMEWRRE R Interest receivable and instalments,
DEIfTER in transit from loan portfolio 76,008 189,708 66,236 181,239
657,150 710,530 645,232 698,809
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19. FTESMTR
(a) FEAFTET A

19. Derivative financial instruments

(@) Use of derivative

AEERBTIITETAH T ALE
memER - REtREmNS - R
BEGTEREIREMIE - BR
Mit&8 TETAESBARARTEE
Lt AR s sR A FERIE &R
EEDRTE -

ER¥RAEEH/U—ERES RS
RE—HERERER G - B
ER SRR E A S B -
BRETEERMN ZZEXH5 MR
HnAS AEENEERRARS
HFEREBTEHEEMEERHEH
BB - AEEZERITAFE
HERAVERELY . kMENREE
FrAEERAA R -

ETEEERTANGRZRESHE AR
ISR R TR T EAR M —(E LR
B AE - HER MRS KRR &
MENESEKNTAEANHNRAFE:
e - 3 B8 S B AN 5 [ T e 15 B K
BAR R o BE 3 5 A & K [ X 4E %
HAGFRHRE) - T T AR AL
BELEHN (BE) AH (BE) W
B TAESHTANGAXERSHE
BE - LRAMEAFZERE &
MESREERRBEZATRE A
BEDRF RIRRE) - TR ARITAET A
RNFEERTX °

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge the
Group's financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative instrument
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss or hedging
instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges as defined in
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange
one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an economic
exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination of all
these. No exchange of principal takes place except for certain
currency swaps. The Group's credit risk represents the potential cost
to replace the swap contracts if counterparties fail to perform their
obligations. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference
to the current fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide
a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the statement
of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments
and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest
rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on
hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or unfavourable,
and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values
of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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The Group
2010 2009
st/ AEE &t/ A¥E
z2HeE Fair values 254 Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional &E =1 notional BE B
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FERT TR FET FHT FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
() FEEADTFEE L (i) Derivatives designated as at
FTABEAITETR fair value through profit or loss
St Interest rate swaps 7,443,726 64,754  (26,822) 20736942 127,084  (106,858)
By currency swaps 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093) 902,100 - (993)
77,844 (34,915) 127,084 (107,851)
(i) FEERAFELEF (i) Derivatives designated as
RPTET R fair value hedge
I R 5 HA Interest rate swaps 27,330,675 1,029,206 (2,819) 31,372,819 1,034,874 (2,847)
E¥sim Currency swaps 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487) 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521)
1,318,777 (5,306) 1,168,741 (43,368)
(iii) #EEABR SR+ (iif) Derivatives designated as
BATETA cash flow hedge
B2 H Currency swaps 2,354,149 - (4,151) 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027)
- (4,151) 21,550 (7,027)
ERERITEEE/(BE) Total recognised derivative
k] assets/(liabilities) 1,396,621 (44,372) 1,317,375 (158,246)
pAVNG|
The Company
2010 2009
&t/ AFE A/ NEE
EE ) Fair values LESE Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional &E Bff notional BE af
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FHT Fitn FHT FTHT T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i) FBEURFERL (i) Derivatives designated as at
STABEMITETR fair value through profit or loss
Hl =2 HR Interest rate swaps 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822) 20,736,942 127,084 (106,858)
joge 3 Ect Currency swaps 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093) 902,100 - (993)
77,844 (34,915) 127,084 (107,851)
(i) EERRFELH (i) Derivatives designated as
HOTHETA fair value hedge
H =2 HR Interest rate swaps 26,630,675 1,005,107 (2,819) 30,447,819 990,601 (2,847)
E¥sie Currency swaps 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487) 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521)
1,294,678 (5,306) 1,124,468 (43,368)
(iii) ¥6E RBE LML (iii) Derivatives designated as
RPTETE cash flow hedge
Kt Ep Currency swaps 2,354,149 - (4,151) 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027)
- (4,151) 21,550 (7,027)
BHERITEERE/(BE) Total recognised derivative
4azE assets/(liabilities) 1,372,522 (44,372) 1,273,102 (158,246)

(b) #HES

WOTET A BAFEL HHIRERE
C NBRBE A& 3

o e REME
BT o

(b) Hedging activities

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if they
are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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(ii) (i)

BEERAREERRGEERR

EERAREEMAMEBEMBERELE
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Fair value hedges

The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate
and currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
resulting from any potential change in fair value of fixed rate
financial instruments.

Cash flow hedges

The Group hedges a portion of foreign exchange risks arising from
variability of cash flows from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments using currency swaps under cash flow hedge.

Replacement costs and potential future credit expenses

The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all derivative
contracts that have a positive value when marked to market. The
potential future credit exposure amounts refer to the amount as
computed in accordance with the Capital-to-Assets ratio guidelines
(Note 3.7). The Group has not experienced any non-performance by

its counterparties.

METESHNEEKRAREEARK
SERRESERN TN - ZE2HIL
BIAERZZHFETEREE L

= 48
HIRZ o

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure amounts
of the derivative contracts are as follows. These amounts do not
take into account the effects of bilateral netting arrangements with
the counterparties.

REE
The Group
2010 2009
BRI TETEARIR
EERF EERE R BBERA EE Rk
Replacement Potential future Replacement  Potential future
cost credit exposure cost  credit exposure
FHET FHET FAT FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEELD Interest rate contracts
- FZE=H — Interest rate swaps 1,442,892 139,612 1,556,847 182,660
EEREL Exchange rate contracts
- Bikia i — Currency swaps 332,268 661,650 184,827 945,386
1,775,160 801,262 1,741,674 1,128,046
/NG|
The Company
2010 2009
BRI TBTEARIR
EERK EERER BERAR EE Rk
Replacement Potential future Replacement  Potential future
cost credit exposure cost  credit exposure
FHET FHET FAT FAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEELD Interest rate contracts
— R HA — Interest rate swaps 1,416,817 139,612 1,509,359 179,160
EEEL Exchange rate contracts
- BtkiaH — Currency swaps 332,268 661,650 184,827 945,386
1,749,085 801,262 1,694,186 1,124,546
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20. ERASFE 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERASRERE (@) Loan portfolio less allowance
REH ZAN/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FTHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIBEFHEE Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
- BF — Hong Kong 18,081,110 21,980,141 14,932,355 20,323,237
— &b — Overseas 11,912,250 15,441,285 11,912,250 15,441,285
BES Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
BHREEE Securitised portfolio (Note 33)
(Fff=E33) 717,786 1,314,685 - -
R\ EREE Non-mortgage portfolio 549,820 1,066,616 549,820 1,066,616
35,260,966 43,802,727 31,394,425 40,831,138
ERURERE Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011) (2,027) (13,975)

35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163

RRZZE—FF + A=+—8 ' UE As at 31 December 2010, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted
KA R RELESTE - RRETARHIEE average remaining term of 9 years (2009: 9 years) on a contractual
BERREEZTMBAT - RIBERA basis, without taking into account any prepayment of local mortgage
SRINEFHFERHBNLE (ZETN loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio is in the year 2050.
F:NF)  RBEFEHEKER=Z
R EFH|E]
ERRERBRBLEFEEAMARER Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the outstanding
ReFEHOBL LT ¢ principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:
REE AR
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

ERURERE Total allowance for loan

48 gﬁ{,ﬁ“*miﬁé} impairment as a percentage of

BENBE D the gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.03% 0.01% 0.03%
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(b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio

REE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fi#T FHT F#T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HAEHE Collective assessment
®n—A—H As at 1 January 14,011 50,536 13,975 49,773
MEHE R Loans written off - (2,748) - (2,748)
Rz 3R AR Released to income statement
(Fts£12)) (Note 12) (16,663) (36,837) (16,629) (36,110)
Bl 2 3 S5 B Recoveries of loans previously
written off 4,760 3,382 4,760 3,382
BEITIR (AR O Unwind of discount on allowance (79) (322) (79) (322)
R+=—A=+—H Asat31December 2,029 14,011 2,027 13,975

EHERREREE  CEEHERE
FEE R R B AT E o SEERLE I
R ERBERAAEHRERE -
FAN - BRORERE7,0008T (ZF
THAEF 1 2,641,00077T) BEEEZ U
B (MisE25) o

A& A RHEER B REESRS

Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into account

the current market value of the collateral of the delinquent loan.

There is no impairment provided for overseas and commercial

mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance for loan impairment of
HK$7,000 (2009: HK$2,641,000) has been transferred to repossessed

assets (Note 25).

Individually impaired loans collectively assessed under portfolio basis

Mo are analysed as follows:
REE ZA/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REERHEAE  Gross impaired loan portfolio 278 5,377 278 5,377
EFURERE Allowance for loan impairment (22) (1,811) (22) (1,811)
256 3,566 256 3,566
EFCREREL Allowance for loan impairment
REEREE as a percentage of gross
BERB DL impaired loan portfolio 7.9% 33.7% 7.9% 33.7%
REERHEAE  Gross impaired loan portfolio
HEFHEEBE as a percentage of gross
MBS loan portfolio - 0.01% - 0.01%

LASR A T2 3R (4 1 AT B AL 3 Bl 60 B 3%
i 1B & 3R B # & /52,007,000 7T
(ZZZT A4 : 12,200,000787T) °

Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment for loans
not individually identified are HK$2,007,000 (2009: HK$12,200,000).
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(c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan portfolio

REBRART]
The Group and the Company
2010

RIREWKIRL
RIERE RIRHARE R RREFR 4
Present value FISHA RIEHEEE
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT HAR EUGRIE Amounts receivable:
- —FR — within one year 57,467 10,492 67,959
- —FREBERAFR — after one year but within five years 193,302 31,305 224,607
- A& — after five years 299,051 28,696 327,747
549,820 70,493 620,313
REERART]
The Group and the Company
2009

(K EUFEL
FIARE RIRERREI Y AR FEHFELD
Present value FBUWA FRIFLREE
of minimum  Interest income  Total minimum
lease payments relatingto  lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT HAR MR A Amounts receivable:

- %R — within one year 93,661 20,369 114,030
- —FRERFAN — after one year but within five years 335,541 63,433 398,974
- A& — after five years 637,414 69,650 707,064
1,066,616 153,452 1,220,068

RZE-—ZF+_RA=+—HERZ=Z
TNFF+ZA=+—H XEERX
A7) 4% 5 L A R PR MR IR M R
B -

There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 of the Group and the
Company.
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21. BHFEE 21. Investment securities
(@) AIMHHEEES (@) Available-for-sale securities
AEERAAR]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BATFEYIRNERES Debt securities at fair value
FE LT Unlisted 1,934,627 2,452,054
RER LT Listed in Hong Kong - 78,466
BB AIMBE T Listed outside Hong Kong - 56,824

1,934,627 2,587,344
BEATESRNEMES Other securities at fair value

RER LT Listed in Hong Kong 1,469,339 1,025,720
A EESH B Total available-for-sale securities 3,403,966 3,613,064
HthFZFSERSMEEES REHE Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
HEEFE - investment trust.

RETRBEEN DT #HEEES Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of issuers
R as follows:
AEERAAT]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIT R E b5 mtkiE Banks and other financial institutions 1,368,020 2,452,054
NGRS Corporate entities 66,719 -
N Public sector entities - 135,290
R SRR T Central governments 499,888 -
HAh Others 1,469,339 1,025,720

3,403,966 3,613,064

AR EIFNESPMIT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
REBRAAT
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
»n—A—H As at 1 January 3,613,064 2,052,552
s Additions 4,263,000 3,134,672
RE (HERER) Disposals (sale and redemption) (4,620,012) (1,811,701
b3 Amortisation (1,088) 8,539
NEEEE) Change in fair value 143,631 227,272
HNESTE H = RE Exchange difference 5,371 1,730
R+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 3,403,966 3,613,064
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(b) Held-to-maturity securities

AEEKRAQT
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
Fi#T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIS K AN BR B (B 5 75 Debt securities at amortised cost
REB L™ Listed in Hong Kong 1,014,324 1,166,552
REBREIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 3,024,472 2,244,441
4,038,796 3,410,993
JEET Unlisted 3,994,337 2,407,005
BHEER B 5B Total held-to-maturity securities 8,033,133 5,817,998
LETREFNTE — 55255 Market value of listed securities — held-to-maturity 4,181,338 3,504,167

BREBETHBEROMBEE2IHES

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

IR as follows:
RNEB RART]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR1T R EH M & B E Banks and other financial institutions 5,742,185 3,939,368
NElE Corporate entities 623,601 622,626
NEWE Public sector entities 863,630 715,548
R IR B Central governments 737,822 293,287
Hi Others 65,895 247,169
8,033,133 5,817,998

FAZI BRSNS T

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as

follows:
AEERAAT]
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®n—H—H ASs at 1 January 5,817,998 5,614,666
3810 Additions 4,341,842 = 2,923,038
B Redemption (2,130,621) (2,731,226)
B Amortisation (7,093) (2,838)
HNEERE H =58 Exchange difference 11,007 14,358
R+=—RA=+—H As at 31 December 8,033,133 5,817,998

B—
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22. MBATIRE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
P /NG|

The Company
2010 2009
FHET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IEEMARG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
B A RIFT /R FOA Due from a subsidiary 3,102,572 1,630,520
3,205,632 1,733,580

MB AR TR RIBERAMERTEERY - Wz The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has
TISFIEETE - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

R-ZE—ZF+_A=+—H " WEBARKNFE The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are:

no fixed term of

R

&1 FEMRAR S 4 2h FEEK B 317/ B i MIRANEHS FFs B AR

Name Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued /registered capital Effective equity held

BBRBER B BAREE 1,000,000 #7T 100%
AR A RIBER BRERREE1ST

HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 ordinary 100%
Management and servicing share each
Limited

YRR B E R P RIBERK AREB1ET 90%
BRAF] EIRER T AR

Bauhinia HKMC PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered capital 90%
Corporation Limited business
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23. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®n—HA—H As at 1 January 115,190 111,989
HIBRTH IR (G &9 m Share of profit, net of tax 2,259 1,922
HNEETE 5 =8 (FIRE31) Exchange differences (Note 31) 13,108 1,279
HivEREE) — AT ERE Other equity movement — fair value reserve (Note 31)
(HdzE31) 163 -
®w+=-—HA=+—H As at 31 December 130,720 115,190
i N/NC]|
The Company
2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEETRRRS © BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554
REZE—ZF+-A=+—H HEEHEED The details of the jointly controlled entity as at 31 December 2010 are:
BT
BHEREE
SRR Sz HhBh FEE BETIRANEE Frtsaz 5 285 LiBIRAE DL
E Place of Principal Nominal value of Class of % of ordinary shares
Name incorporation activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC BRPLE RIRERIEIRER B 18T =gl 50%
Berhad . BREESE 1T _
Cagamas HKMC Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million of Ordinary 50%
Berhad business RM1 each

ARG EA KRG B AR AL T

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s

interest in a jointly controlled entity is as follows:

2010 2009
Fi#&T AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE Assets 131,217 115,928
aE Liabilities (497) (738)
EEFEE Share of net assets 130,720 115,190
A Income 3,927 3,389
FE R Share of profit for the year 2,259 1,922

B—

=
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24. Fixed assets

REE
The Group
AT -
FRRES
HEmE Office
%f&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and Ehg Motor k]
improvement fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#ET T FHET T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTZThE—A—H Net book amount as at
SR FEE 1 January 2009 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
RE Additions 1,137 994 15,714 - 17,845
& (7E9) Depreciation charge
(Note 9) (1,627) (725) (8,482) (56) (10,890)
RZZEThF+=-_A=+—H Netbook amount as at
BREDFEE 31 December 2009 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
RE Additions 77 259 8,530 - 8,866
& (FizE9) Depreciation charge
(Note 9) (2,016) (923) (9,970) (19) (12,928)
HNEETE SRR Exchange adjustments 7 17 33 - 57
R=—T—F|F+=-A=+—H Net book amount as at
ARELFER 31 December 2010 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
N=—F—F|&F+-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2010
BZNET Cost 9,273 7,269 133,196 226 149,964
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (8,988) (6,536) (116,962) (226) (132,712)
RIS Net book amount 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
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Z/NS]|
The Company
WAERRME
REREE
HEME Office
#f&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and EhE Motor 4EE
improvement fixtures Computers vehicle Total
F#T FH#EIT Fi#T FHET Fi#T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZTThF—H—H Net book amount as at
BREFRE 1 January 2009 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
NE Additions 601 123 14,387 — 15,111
e Depreciation charge (1,480) (553) (8,324) (56) (10,413)
REZZFZFNF+=-—A=+—H Netbook amount as at
AR FEE 31 December 2009 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
NE Additions 72 240 8,490 — 8,802
e Depreciation charge (1,718) (568) (9,517) (19) (11,822)
R=T—F&F+=-A=+—H Net book amount as at
BREFEE 31 December 2010 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
R=F—F&+=H As at 31 December 2010
=+-8
PRAE Cost 8,711 6,345 131,778 226 147,060
RETE Accumulated depreciation (8,529) (5.992) (116,333 (226) (131,080
AR TERER Net book amount 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
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25. EARIE - #HE& R HMBE 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

REE AAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT Fi#T FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W [el & 2= Repossessed assets 3,861 3,317 3,861 3,317
NAEHEES Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
FEU AT (=TT) Dividend receivable from
RERRE available-for-sale
investments (listed) 14,032 15,530 14,032 15,530
Hob Others 9,016 12,998 10,577 17,084
27,659 32,595 29,220 36,681
26. FEfTRRIA - FEfTRSZ R 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
HibhBE other liabilities
REE RAR]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHT FAT FHT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERRRTE R SR Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 113,043 126,205 146,710 172,018
E e oE Other payable - - 467,734 591,108
HEtbaE Other liabilities 4,163,057 4,133,740 4,163,057 4,133,740
E b Other provisions 15,037 14,232 14,765 14,083

4,291,137 4,274,177 4,792,266 4,910,949

EMmBaEREARZZEZE=F+-_AK=2ZMW Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

F-AgABEITHE ([B85FR]) BFEE  enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of the

WIRIBE RN (E E LT HRIRENRE - Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") in December 2003 and
January 2004

HE-ZT-—ZF+-A=+—H ' A2AFMA Upto 31 December 2010, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage loans
Bauhinia MBS Limited 1% 308 LIZIBEFIE  to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company continues
BHE - WHEEREERISESHEMIZE - B to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the
RIRBERR [ERHEEFHE] - AR [EMEE  guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited
{7038 | R —£ & Bauhinia MBS Limited #  shown as “Other payable” has also been recognised. As at 31 December 2010,
BE-RZZ—TFF+-A=+—H  AAFH other payable was HK$467,734,000 (2009: HK$591,108,000) in the Company’s
AR5 2% P B EL M FE 1 5K B 467,734,00078 7T statement of financial position.
ZZTHEF : 591,108,000/ 7T) °
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27. RiEEERBRIEEE

27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

AEERANR
The Group and the Company

REE R ARE]
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
£ BRI B ES BRR T
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT TR FHT FHT T FHT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
AR E B Provision for unearned premium 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
FRREBARRE Provision for outstanding claims
- BERE/(mE)BR — claims reported/(recovery) - (164) 164 2,091 27) 2,118
- BEABERPRER - claims incurred but not reported 84,611 14,771 69,840 87,800 25,390 62,410
84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
1,773,665 204,891 1,568,774 1,462,318 266,101 1,196,217
() RmHREREESBSTMOT (@) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned premiums
REBRAAT REBERAAT
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2010 2009
£ BRR FE = BER et
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHET FHET FHET FTHT FET FTHET
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
»n—A—H As at 1 January 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
BUEURE (FizE14) Premiums written (Note 14) 862,282 70,925 791,357 839,042 54,392 784,650
EmERE (FizE14) Premiums earned (Note 14) (545,655) (121,379) (424,276) (295,985)  (124,907)  (171,078)
Rt+=—A=+—8 As at 31 December 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
(b) RRBERESEHHTUNT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding claims
AEBEAAT REERARE
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2010 2009
£ ) BRI B £ BRR b o)
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHRT Fign FHT FHT T FHT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
n—A—H As at 1 January 89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181
EEDL::ES Claims paid - 1,175 (1,175) (1,804) (1,969) 165
S Claims recovery 508 202 306 1,207 674 533
BEEERR (i 14) Claims incurred (Note 14)
- BHFRER - claims reported (2,599) (1,515) (1,084) 2,500 1,310 1,190
- BELEEREBREA - claims incurred but not reported (3,189) (10,618) 7,429 8,618  (11,841) 20,459
R+t=A=+—H As at 31 December 84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
) BEFRZEAR (c) Liability adequacy test

HETABERRARAK  ZE2HBEL
BenekfRrEnEBRASHEBARS
mEREGEE - ARBETR=Z—
TERZTENFFTZA=F+—8"
REEEEHRBAEE -

The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2010 and
2009, the Group's insurance liabilities are adequate.
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28. Debt securities issued

REE P/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
TFHERT FHT FHET FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR S R A T RREY Debt securities carried at amortised
BI5ES cost
&5 T AT EIES DIP notes 4,118,849 4,218,169 4,397,000 4,218,169
1R SHR AN B BR Y Total debt securities carried at
BB AERE amortised cost 4,118,849 4,218,169 4,397,000 4,218,169
BEBAFEEH Debt securities designated
B EHES as fair value hedge
B TR EIES DIP notes 20,774,658 24,013,513 20,774,658 24,013,513
TEREFEITEIR RBIP and other notes
HEMES 699,802 1,760,614 699,802 1,760,614
BB R BITEEIES MTN notes 11,597,306 11,656,629 11,597,306 11,656,629
TEE AR AL R Total debt securities designated
BI%E 4R as fair value hedge 33,071,766 37,430,756 33,071,766 37,430,756
RAATERRIEER Debt securities designated as at
LA E{EEMEET A fair value through profit or
EniEEES loss upon initial recognition
B ILEEIES DIP notes 1,756,638 2,329,306 1,756,638 2,329,306
TEEFETE R RBIP and other notes
HhEAE 180,482 167,341 180,482 167,341
HREES BT EIES MTN notes - 349,501 - 349,501
EA%MAEE.: I E Total debt securities designated as at
ﬂ?fﬁ“{tpﬁr)\ fair value through profit or loss upon
T@mﬁ’ﬂ;ﬁﬁ CE ] initial recognition 1,937,120 2,846,148 1,937,120 2,846,148
BEBITERESFERE Total debt securities issued 39,127,735 44,495,073 39,405,886 44,495,073

RER REBRVEERFEEZES
At & f& #91,074,000,000% T (Z T T N F
2,272,000,000787T) BEREBEAAFEZ (LA
B o ZZERABEZ A TEZ RN EER =
BN & - ROIRFERRIEE B A FEE A
BRNeReERAERAEERESHHRER
S ERRF A MIES R A A XS 584> 612,080,000
BT (ZZEZTNEF : 581,052,000/87T) °

ZERERARNFEIIENEHEBELAEMNE
REEREARFZ EERBRE

/\"v*

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition HK$1,074,000,000
(2009: HK$2,272,000,000) hominal value of such financial liabilities as at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value changes are attributable to
changes in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$612,080,000 (2009: HK$581,052,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at maturity
to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at
fair value.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

NEH /N
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FHT FTET AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

®n—H—H As at 1 January 44,023,620 40,967,452 44,023,620 41,412,787
BT Issuance 8,279,703 22,688,680 10,103,499 29,092,736
D= Less: Redemption (13,838,443) (19,645,595) (15,384,088) (26,494,986)
HNESDE H = K8 Exchange difference 5,591 13,083 5,591 13,083
HEEEBRE Total nominal value 38,470,471 44,023,620 38,748,622 44,023,620
ImEABEE S Unamortised portion of discount (697,973) (665,658) (697,973) (665,658)
NEEFE Fair value adjustment 1,355,237 1,137,111 1,355,237 1,137,111
R+-—A=+—8H As at 31 December 39,127,735 44,495,073 39,405,886 44,495,073

NEEFEFHITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEE AAH
The Group The Company

BBIR TERES Ll BHIR TERS hEES

stEl B TatEl BHTEHE st B¥{TRtE B TatEl

DIP RBIP MTN DIP RBIP MTN

TR FHRT Fign Fign TR FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT EEE Amount issued at nominal value 7,104,000 - 1,175,703 8,927,796 - 1,175,703
B U ERRRIR Consideration received 7,018,267 - 1175268 8,842,026 - 1,175,268

AEEETHNEREFBASEEEIRE(E
METHZEETE S ERf—REEES MIE
BREMZS -

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group, and are
issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and refinancing.
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29. B ITIRIBE S

29. Mortgage-backed securities issued

AEE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS A FIRRAIRIBE S MBS at amortised cost
RIBBHEE MBS Programme - 60,305
Bauhinia #&Z18& #H L 51 &l Bauhinia MBS Programme 805,650 990,815
805,650 1,051,120
EBEBATFEEPHIRBES MBS designated as fair value hedge
Bauhinia #&1&7& Hbat &l Bauhinia MBS Programme 724,099 969,274
BEITIRIBE 545 (131 36) Total MBS issued (Note 36) 1,529,749 2,020,394
n—H—H As at 1 January 1,976,121 3,147,577
& : BB Less: Redemption (470,471)  (1,171,456)
mEEEE Total nominal value 1,505,650 1,976,121
NEFE Fair value adjustment 24,099 44,273
w+—-—A=+—H As at 31 December 1,529,749 2,020,394

FTERBEFI AR ARNEREE A
RMARREERBERMESIREE S MEET -
%18 B 54 A H1,185,520,0008 o (ZZZE A,
£ :1,905,793,000% 7T) B ERFTEITIZIBHE
FHREIR G ( iEE36) - BEITIZIBH HFERER

805,650,000 7T (ZZZT N4 : 1,276,120,0007%  the Company.

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$1,185,520,000 (2009: HK$1,905,793,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 36). Out of the total MBS issued,
nominal value of HK$805,650,000 (2009: HK$1,276,120,000) are guaranteed by

7T) BVE{E AR A BIHELR o
30. lgF 30. Share capital
—2-BER
—BThE
2010 and 2009
FHET
HK$'000
JETE Authorised
FIREE 1B H 30 B E @Ak 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BEEITREE Issued and fully paid
BAREE 1 AT 20 (B E AR 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000

EBRB\EFZFHFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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31. Other reserves
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AEE
The Group
RRFEE ATERE Eapialti] T 3 (& S
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation k)
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R_ZZhF—HF—H As at 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) (8,557) 26,951
At EESFNATEES :  Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REBRWFRE - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - - 227,272
- HEREIE (FHE11) - realisation on disposal
(Note 11) = (3,522) = = (3,522)
- B (£ 13(h) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (37,311) = = (37,311)
— G > - amortisation* - 2,381 = = 2,381
R Cash flow hedges
- BEENERTER — net gains arising from
[ ) AR UK hedges recognised
= F R directly in equity - - 25,126 - 25,126
— 18 (i 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) - (4,145)
BMEN =5 Currency translation difference
- BT — subsidiary - - - 158 158
- HEESIER (K5 23) — jointly controlled entity
(Note 23) = = - 1,279 1,279
Eh2mEmBA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 1,437 211,238
FR AR B e A B 2 W R Transfer of 50% of net risk
Jﬁﬁﬁ{%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ'\] 50% premium earned from retained
EN profits to contingency reserve 76,313 - - - 76,313
Hﬂﬂl‘ﬁf AR O 2R R T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - - (10,025)

FAREBAEENIHNERFERERAETH

AU ER AR B o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities

ZT—ZFFI ANNUAL REPORT 2010



174 w&piEHEEME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REE
The Group
RgfFEE QTERE i bE 5
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation 4azE
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
T T T T TSI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZZhF+=—F=+—H/ Asat 31 December 2009/
—Z-ZTF—HF—H 1 January 2010 189,833 167,449 (45,685) (7,120) 304,477
AN EESFNATEE Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REIF W FEE - unrealised net gains - 143,631 - - 143,631
- HEREE (K1) - realisation on disposal
(Note 11) = (40,554) = = (40,554)
— I8 (FE 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (17,307) = = (17,307)
- 5E I,%Z SRR — - unrealised net gains — jointly
PRI 88 (MisE23) controlled entity (Note 23) - 163 - - 163
- %ﬁﬁ & — amortisation* - 1,809 - - 1,809
IR Cash flow hedges
- BEER S ERE — net gains arising from
EENKEFE hedges recognised
directly in equity - - 26,340 - 26,340
- BARGEROAFEZS - fair value changes
transferred to income
statement = = 79 = (79)
— I8 (FisE 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = = (4,333) = (4,333)
HHETE N =R Currency translation difference
- MIEBAR] — subsidiary = = = 3,878 3,878
HEESIZEEE (M1EE23) - jointly controlled entity
(Note 23) = = = 13,108 13,108
Eb2EBRA Other comprehensive income - 87,742 21,928 16,986 126,656
FR R a A| B B m R Transfer of 50% of net risk
[R\ B AR BV RE A 50% premium earned from retained
Z[R profits to contingency reserve 260,282 - - - 260,282
AR fe AR B R E T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (12,680) - - = (12,680)
R=T—F&#+=AH As at 31 December 2010
=1+=—H 437,435 255,191 (23,757) 9,866 678,735

*AREBREENAHEERSERERAEESES

R R 8 o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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/NG|
The Company
RkafFEE ATERE H R
Contingency Fair value Hedging FCEE
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT THT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=TZNF—HF—H As at 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) 35,508
A EESNAFEES :  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities:
- RERUWEFEE — unrealised net gains - 227,272 - 227,272
- HERER (1) — realisation on disposal (Note 11) - (3,522) - (3,522)
— 18 (FEE 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (37,311) - (37,311)
— 5~ — amortisation* - 2,381 - 2,381
b b Cash flow hedges
- EERERER — net gains arising from hedges
E SR EERN KR FRE recognised directly in equity - - 25,126 25,126
- A (KIFE13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) (4,145)
Hih2mEBRA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 209,801
HRRE A AR E Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
R RR B FEEH) 50% earned from retained profits to
Eﬂﬁﬁ e contingency reserve 76,313 - - 76,313
B ERE RS Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - (10,025)
R=ZTZhAF+=-H=+—H/ Asat31December 2009/1 January 2010
—E-FTF—HF—H 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597
HHEZANATEES) :  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities:
- REIBUW S FEE — unrealised net gains - 143,631 - 143,631
- HERZER (1) — realisation on disposal (Note 11) - (40,554) - (40,554)
— 78 (5 13(b)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (17,307) - (17,307)
- By~ - amortisation* - 1,809 - 1,809
IR EDH Cash flow hedges
- EERERTER - net gains arising from hedges
I;T/KPJXL%E’M&Z )RR recognised directly in equity - - 26,340 26,340
- BAMSEROAFEEZSE - fair value changes transferred to
income statement - - 79 (79)
— 18 (i E 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,333) (4,333)
HAbZ2EHA Other comprehensive income - 87,579 21,928 109,507
AR B e A B 2 W ER Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
R R R B FEER) 50% earned from retained profits to
:Etﬂ %k contingency reserve 260,282 - - 260,282
BB REREREBEF Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (12,680) - - (12,680)
R=T—FTH+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2010 437,435 255,028  (23,757) 668,706

FAREREENIHNEEFERERAEEY

AU ER R BB o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

B—

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
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32. MBERMALITIIMEKI S 32. Material related party transactions

(@) ARERPFEARRAIINEESEEA (@) The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as

BDFAYER - RARIEAMALAILTY

ZIARG)

HEBSREER ([EE2ERD
B HRR#E LB SR REBFNR 5 E
& BERERMEENEF TAHRR
REERRIRE PR E RAAERIER
% APBARREEERARAERE
BIZIBEN ©

SINEES B BEBSERMAARRM
B0EETHRERER - R —FF
ToA=+—B - UEREHRE(CE
ZNE B HE_Z-ZF+-A
=+—R ' ARAREEINEESRIE
MWIRERBESEBETL (CTTENF
£)  MARRRPKARREEEE
15488 T (ZEThF : 173188
T RBEK -
HNEARNRZBRRBELRZET -
S B AR RZAEE T/ BEHREE
PR BRI B IR IIZIBRE -

B ARINR 5 BIE AR A RS
TTROIZIBRE IR ER (MHEE33) -
FR - R B RZZMmOTENBANI
R BRABRAA LRV AETF RS RIA B 1O
B B

() FEBAEH

Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company had entered into
various transactions with related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA"), the
government-related entities and the Government of HKSAR included
subscribing to the custodian and clearing agent services provided
by the Central Moneymarkets Unit (“CMU") Service operated by
the HKMA, renting office premises from The Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“FSI”) and purchasing of mortgage loans from the
FSI.

The Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the Company
with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and there was no
outstanding balance (2009: nil) as at 31 December 2010. The Company
held investment of HK$500 million (2009: nil) in the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Bills (“"EFB") as at 31 December 2010. In 2010, the
Company purchased about HK$154 million (2009: HK$173 million) of
mortgage loans from the FSI.

Transactions with the subsidiary included the provision of mortgage
insurance cover for mortgage loans purchased by the subsidiary
from the Approved Sellers/Services in the course of its ordinary
business.

Transactions with the SPEs included acting as the guarantor for the
MBS issued by the SPEs (Note 33).

The amount of income and expenses arising from these transactions
during the year, the balances of the amounts due to and from the
relevant related parties were as follows:

(i) Income and expenses for the year:

REE -
T B BURT AR R 1
The Group
The Government and
government-related entities

2010 2009

FHET FH&T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEWA — INEESZE Interest income — EFB 274 -
HihZ i — B TEHRR Other expenses — CMU service

EE R RTS 914 832

WAE —HE Premises — rental 6,368 6,368

EBRB\EZFFMR AR THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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(i) Balances as at 31 December:

KEE KRA
The Group The Company
B T Lil=pa RRAR
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
TET FEx TER TEL FHERT FEx FER FET
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
FEWEERATIFIE  Amounts due from a group

(Hft3E22) company (Note 22) - - - - 3,102,572 1,630,520 - -
FERTEEARFIE  Amounts due to group companies - - - - - - 32,800 40,992
H R FRIA Other payable (Note 26)

(Pf=E26) - - - = - - 467,734 591,108
HipEE (MizE26)  Other liabilities (Note 26) 4,163,057 4133740 4,163,057 4,133,740 - - - -
RiBFH(LETE Financial guarantees under the

B RSHELR MBS programmes - - - - - - 805,868 1,277,647
kIR B Total risk-in-force - - - - 544,921 220,140 - -

b) EEEEEAR

TEERERERAMERREINE
BERE - BB RGN REERBHA
T BREEEREREEAS -

(b) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,

directly or indirectly, including directors and senior officers.

AEEFEEREASNTHNRE Key management personnel compensation for the year comprises:
2010 2009

FTHET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e MEAMRHESET Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 13,678 13,120
B 1E A Post-employment benefits 951 942
14,629 14,062

—Z—ZFFH, ANNUAL REPORT 2010



33. R AT REHFIL
RABRBRREFRAR - AEBIRBELFRE
(25—) B2 7% Bauhinia MBS Limited #7171
BEFEEEFCIE  AmAZMEREFRA A
ERIDIBEFES - ZEEEAEBARILZE
BERESFBRANR RS R E AR

o

BERHEE
Jtﬁ@ﬁfm °

EARREZEEBRBEEFEAPER S REN
B HIER S LB RV AB A B 0 i B 1B 3R
FEHELIERRIBERES -

EARRMES AR AR IRBEHAS
B A X —20 (MR AREHD) Ak
K m s - ABREIEGIE - BIE BEMR EHERIR
BEFMAA - ZFRBETHEA KBS RER
EMBARRKRIER °

ABSBRTERAATIHE 2E
IR RS

R I TERR R
RERNBEROIZEE S °

AR RIFEES BEROEE MRS E’U%ﬂ
BE 915D RHIAESE & QB K L HERA
RAEEERAL SN EREEATE -

T8 CERIREZRRE) 2B 2% 8AKE —
RRARMRE B %?&QTéﬁEﬁiﬁ’ AINRERE
B ERMRESRARIRBRRARNES - BIALGRET
ANFRAT - B AR Eﬁﬁ‘%#ﬁﬂ%i%ﬁﬁé
STARERNEE - TREVLEZE TRRARM
ERARBHERNRKILER - BEFE (&
AIRBEE®) 2BE 2RMENSAAARS
BERR R E B S 2 REBRS R o
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33. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE") namely HKMC Funding
Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise mortgage
portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two SPEs. These
transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the mortgage portfolio
concerned from the Company’s statement of financial position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual right to
receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise transfers
mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is retained. These
mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of financial position to the
extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES, that do not qualify
for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the fair
value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and the part
that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires consolidation
of SPES when the substance of the relationships between the SPE and the
reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by the reporting entity.
This results in consolidating back the transferred assets to the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following summarises the outstanding
principal balances of the mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES that were
derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial position but were
consolidated back to the consolidated statement of financial position as a
result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2010 2009

FHET FHAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRRIBEESRE (B—)BRA HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited - 59,829

Bauhinia MBS Limited Bauhinia MBS Limited 717,786 1,254,856
BE TRRARNRIBEER Mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES (Note 20(a))

484 (FizE20()) 717,786 1,314,685
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34. TRIE 34. Commitments
(@) &E& (a) Capital
AEE AAR]
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FAT Fi#ET AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EHUERRETA Authorised but not contracted for 19,166 19,643 19,107 19,352

(b) BEHL
REFRYR - RETAIEHOLEH
A 78 4E H B R R R B 2 (S FRAE R

(b) Operating lease

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed as

DHTEATR follows:
REE ZAN/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i /NEL Y ES Office premises
TNER—F not later than one year 318 7,264 - 6,368
ZR—FETZHRAF later than one year and not later
than five years - 306 - =
318 7,570 - 6,368

FIR®% - ANAREME A A REBE
N AH=FENHEL  BKARR
EEAF £ 7,833,008 T 0 AFA
REEBBOMAEME -

Subsequent to the year end, the Company entered into a lease for
a period of 3 years with the FSI by which the FSI let to the Company
office premises in Hong Kong at a yearly rental of HK$7,833,000.
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35. IRIBIRIGETR
AAREZEBRRR AR EHESERR -
IR ZFETS ©

&os
gy

RZZE—ZTF+A=+—H ' BREREED
BI176 BB (ZETNE 149288 T) » &
24 BHEIIL (ZTTNF : 33318 B I0) BRI
HEBRBARBEERE - MAARRE EITAE
BTI52EBIT (ZZTNEF  1159EFHT) &
[ERs o

AR TH 1528 TR A R RAZNEBRIZRER
B 9EBTRRERFRENBREIEEESB
B B RRIR R BRI ZHE S T B S ke (R
o MARRMRE SRR - BREERER
H R R IB R TN AT A AR R A R o

36. ERIFEE

FRABRDHEEBEERRMERRIEBER TR
#EITHER - UWRIBEERES A EIRERTHE
RFEERIZIBES - EHCAEIZENERE
AEARREREER AR (REEFRIZBESMS -
AR R BMERERA) SUER—HIZBESFER
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35. Mortgage insurance business

The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing basis
with its approved reinsurers.

As 31 December 2010, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$17.6 billion
(2009: HK$14.92 billion) of which HK$2.4 billion (2009: HK$3.33 billion) was ceded
to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$15.2 billion (2009: HK$11.59
billion) was retained by the Company.

Out of the HK$15.2 billion of risk-in-force retained by the Company, the excess
loss of HK$1.9 billion of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-
of-loss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions,
and the Company retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss
and remote risk portions.

36. Pledged assets

SPESs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by way
of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in accordance with
the provisions under the relevant securitisation programmes. The security
trustee appointed under the relevant securitisation programmes will enforce
the securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in

RREENR  TEZSIEABIEBEENEK  the case of guaranteed MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment
an o under any series of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default
in respect of any series of MBS.
REE
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EiEEE Assets pledged
SRITRE BT K Time deposits with banks 9,567 28,317
BHEE Investment securities 278,151 -
B EREE Mortgage portfolio 1,185,520 1,905,793
FEUWFI S, Interest receivable 31 267
1,473,269 1,934,377
AHRAARE Secured liabilities
BEITIRIBES (M7 29) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 29) 1,529,749 2,020,394
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EERMIRBEFES BEFRA A RMATH AN E
HMeRBEFAES (H5E33) - BERRIBERA
ERERRFESHASEER [EREEFE]
WHERREE (FE26) °

1,8008 B T (ZZEZNF : 57088 70) KT 8
GREEMTFRITEASTRIZBEREENR

AN

37. BB BEHRE
EFEERN T ——FNAT_HBBEANK
RRK

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio recorded in
the SPE’s book (Note 33) and the transferred mortgage portfolio continued to
be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the guarantee
and continuing involvement (Note 26).

Time deposits of HK$18 million (2009: HK$5.7 million) are pledged as security
deposits with a bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

37. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April
2011.
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